EUMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIALJI}EP%T

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2013

NANSEMOND 1646 SUFFOLK 1742

VIRGINTIA
/ﬁa,oo/f‘uuafbkmfu)%lk

ma = mvm e - —

/ }‘.HH()\ AT SLH()H\H’\H()!\(I\IH &




CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
June 30, 2013

Prepared by:

The Department of Finance



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of TranSmULLal .. ..ottt e e eae e ses e s s sesesas e e assaa s e se st e s et e s et it e bessasebess e bt abeste i
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.........ccocvveovvrinnninnvennnecisnssesseasanes viii
Directory of Principal Officials ... ssa b s s rre e ben e s e nens ix
OrgamizationNal CRATt..........ooviiiiii ettt ettt s e st s e srssaraer s entsassaeassassareesssnasees xi

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUAITOF'S REPOIT ...ttt e s st g b sas s rasneanenerans 1
Management’s Discussion and ANAIYSIS ..ot e e ras s e e anens 3

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government Wide Financial Statements
Exhibit 1: S1a18mMent Of NEt POSION .vvviivviirrriirerieiserissseeisesssssssessssssssssssasmsssssssessssssssnessaseesssssssssssssssesssnne 12
Exhibit 2: Statement Of A CHVITIES. ....coeeeeiieieeiieee st teeereeee et eeereerseesaeseeseenseesaesssessassressasessssstesssessesssseranees 13

Fund Financial Statements

Exhibit 3: Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNAS .........cccoocioiinncnesiees st csss e srssons 14
Exhibit 4: Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds 15
Exhibit 5: Statement of Net Position — Proprietary FUnds........cc.ccveienincnnnnnnieeseneseeeessesssssserosessnns 17
Exhibit 6: Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds ..... 18
Exhibit 7: Statement of Cash Flow — Proprietary FUNAS ..ot esse s seseses 19
Exhibit 8: Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary Funds............covvvvvieeieneeseeeecetseseesseeeeeeens 21
Exhibit 9: Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — OPEB Trust Fund ........ccoccoveveeceveneeenec. 22
Notes to FINANCIAL SIAEMENLS .......covemrereieeirecireecetre e e st sss b asabb st seresesassessts seseabessressmesas 23

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORAMATION

Exhibit 10: Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual — General FUNd..........ccooviirerrerecieeeceereserte st e e bsnsssa s 66
Exhibit 11: Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Budget and Actual — Road Maintenance Fund ... 70
Exhibit 12: Analysis of Funding Progress for Defined Benefit Pension Plan ........ccccoeveecvveeinriencenerecnnene 71

Exhibit 13: Analysis of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits .......c.ccovveveeveeeveenicrinencnne. 72



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
{continued)

FINANCIAL SECTION (CONTINUED)
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Exhibit 14: Combining Balance Sheet — Non Major Governmental Funds..........cc.ccovvereeiiereisieirecrenresenis
Exhibit 15: Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Non-Major Governmental FUNGS..........cooecrereere ettt es e bes
Exhibit 16: Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual — Debt Service Fund ... e
Exhibit 17: Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual — Special Revenue FUnds........covvceeecncneincieieienienecnsceeeeecenssaenssneenes
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Exhibit 18: Combining Statement of Net POSIION .........ccccourvieiririnrnciencntnsinieissevisv oo rsaeensss s eesenes
Exhibit 19: Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position...................
Exhibit 20: Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ... cssssessenesseseessessessesees

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Exhibit 21: Combining Statement of Net POSILION ..........ccovciciiiinnrerrienierrersisstssesssissessssssmesseeseeseesseasenens
Exhibit 22: Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position..................
Exhibit 23: Combining Statement of Cash FIOWS ......ccocvieioiorciirie ettt esse st srsaesss

FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Exhibit 24: Combining Staternent of Fiduciary Net POSIION ........ccocoveecieieeeereeeeececeie e ssve e
Exhibit 25: Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities.........cco.ocovrreernniveiisineecrnessssenens

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - CITY OF SUFFOLK SCHOOL BOARD
Exhibit 26: Combining Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds .............ccovovivmeevcmreceeeeseceecteeeeeesresneneaene
Exhibit 27: Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
GovernmMENtal FUNAS.........occoieie ettt res e s ssra e sasne s s s b e s s st ons
Exhibit 28: Budgetary Reconciliation Schedule — Governmental Funds ..........c.cccoeuveeveeeeeereencscrecseenee.
Exhibit 29 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) ........ccccuiiininiriirrrinenenrcreeneasesnsssessessesssssesssssesssssssssssessoses
Exhibit 30: Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary FUNds ..........ccovrvvvreercnenceeieircsrscsseneen
Exhibit 31: Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - OPEB Trust Funds .....................
Exhibit 32: Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities — Agency Funds............ccceveevivereneirecsennns



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)
STATISTICAL SECTION
Table I  Net Position by ComPONEN.....uiiimmimmimmimremississiesmissssssssimtiestsmmtesrassssssesessasssasserseares G4
Table2  Changes in Net POSILION .....o.coviviriiiiinineiinn st esssssessensens 95
Table 3 Fund Balances — Governmental FUnds ... e 97
Table 4 Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds ...........ccciciinnionnnnisnennnenenenensesens 98
Table 5 Tax Revenues by Source — Governmental Funds.........cooeiioiiiicnncncrscnrransresseerenne 99
Table 6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property ............ccccoccrvvnninincnnionennens 100
Table 7 Direct Property Tax Rates .......coiieiiiieiiciiiiciieieinieistsassesasssissessssmarnserssssssessesassassssssessens 101
Table 8  Principal Property Tax PAYErS ... irrrirrncecrerrecreresscerecsetreessetseesestenesessensesssessessssssevense 102
Table 9  Property Tax Levies and ColleCtions.......cvieoeeiiniriceiiereriesseseressessssssssssesssssssesssssssseres 103
Table 10 Property Value and ConStruCion.........cvveiiinensincncsicninin s s e sssesssssessssesssssssssaneasenss 104
Table 11 Principal Commercial/Industrial Water and Sewer Consumers ..........ccooeeeeiieieenenierasereens 105
Table 12 Water and Sewer Rate Schedule...........oo s esassresnees 106
Table 13 Outstanding DEDBE BY TYPE.....cveveerrirrerierereirenrenrrereesesseseseressessessesssassessesssseressessenessssssssssssenes 107
Table 14 Legal Debt Margin.......oiiiiiicneniciiiiiiin sttt s ses et ssnese st ssesassseasesnesssnsnnns 108
Table 15 Pledge-Revenue COVEIAZE.........ccvovverirenceeieetrsrse st secses e s ssesseasssssasrassssrasassbesnenes 109
Table 16 Demographic and Economic StatiStics .........cccveiiirineincnecninnicniccncssesenressseerassersssesssesssnns 110
Table 17 Principal EMPIOYETS ...ttt irissan s sassaesserssesaesasssassesssessesssssssssasssnesnans 111
Table 18 Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program ...........ccceceeeenne.. 112
Table 19 Operating Indicatory by Function/Program.............cccceenieresenveseesieseeeeesesesssssssssssessenns 114
Table 20 Capital Asset Statistics by FUnCtion/Program .........covvveeeeernveereseesesscsessessssesesssssssssosesses 115
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report of Independent Auditor on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Governmental ARAIING SIARAQEAS ...ttt ss s b bt e s srmeas 116
Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over

Compliance Required by OMB Circttlar A-133 ...ttt resssae s rssssssesae s e ses s 118
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards..........ccc.ooiviiiiiniecinininiie s sessesssessesesssssssssssessens 120

Schedule of Findings and Questioned CostS.........cocoriiireninnienninnicnieietnseesesssrrsrssersssassessssesssssssssasses 122



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK



INTRODUCTORY SECTION




THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK



City of Suffolk

City Manager
P.O. Box 1858 Suffolk, VA 23439
Phone: (757) 514-4012

December 16, 2013

The Honorable Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

Dear Council Members:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the period of
July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013. The code of the Commonwealth of Virginia and the charter
of the City of Suffolk (the City) require the City to publish, at the close of each fiscal year, a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. This report has been prepared by the Department of Finance
and complies with state law and guidelines of the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

The City’s Management assumes full responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and
reliability of all information presented in this report. We believe the data, as presented, are
accurate in all material respects and are presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding
of the City’s financial affairs have been included. In order to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance regarding the data, the management of the City has designed a framework of internal
accounting controls to protect the City’'s assets from loss of unauthorized use or disposition,
provide reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintain the
accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and that the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management. We assert to the best of our knowledge this CAFR is complete and
reliable in all material aspects.

According to Section 8.08 of the City Charter and Section 15.2-2511of the 1950 Code of
Virginia, as amended, an annual audit by an independent auditor of the City is required. The
City’s financial statements have been audited by Cherry Bekaert, L.LL.P. As a result of an audit of
the City’s financial records and transactions of all funds, component units, and departments of the
City, Cherry Bekaert, L.L.P., has concluded that the financial statements are in compliance with
generally accepted accounting principles and have issued an unqualified opinion on the City’s
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



The audit included and was part of a broader federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet
the special needs of federal grants. The standards governing single audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also
on the City’s intemal control and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on
those involving the administration of federal awards. The analysis by the auditors is included in
the CAFR within the Compliance Section.

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found within the financial section
immediately following the independent auditor’s opinion.

Profile of the City

The present City of Suffolk was formed January 1, 1974, from the consolidation of the City of
Suffolk and the City of Nansemond (formerly Nansemond County). The City is Virginia’s
largest city in land area and one of the top ten in land area in the nation with over 400 square
miles. The diverse landscape includes a mix of rural, suburban and urban development areas. The
City is situated in the western portion of Hampton Roads, Virginia's coastal plain area, and is
bounded by the James River to the north, the Cities of Chesapeake and Portsmouth to the east, the
State of North Carolina to the south, and the Counties of Southampton and Isle of Wight to the
west. The City of Suffolk is one of seven major cities that form the Norfolk-Virginia Beach-
Newport News metropolitan area with 1.6 million people. It is also known as the Hampton Roads
area.

The City's government is organized under the Council-Manager form of government. The
governing body, the City Council, is composed of seven members and a Mayor who develop
policies for the administration of the City. The Mayor is elected at large and the Council are
elected by borough in a city-wide election every other year with terms of office being four years.
The City Council appoints a City Manager to act as administrative head of the City. The City
Manager serves at the pleasure of City Council and carries out the City Council’s policies and
directs business procedures. The City Manager also appoints and removes the directors of all
departments and all employees of those departments under his/her control.

The School Board is elected by borough. Under Virginia law all operations of the School Board
are completely independent of City Council and the City Administration. City Council is
required to make an annual appropriation to the School Board based upon an approved budget,
but has no authority to direct how such appropriation is expended.

As a full-service city, Suffolk provides a broad range of municipal services authorized by statue
or charter. Those services include education, public safety, highways and streets, parks and
recreation, sanitation, health and social services, public improvements, planning and zoning,
public utilities, storm water management and general administrative services.

The funds and entities included in the City’s CAFR are those controlled by, or dependent on, the
City. This determination is explained in Note 1A within the Notes to the Financial Statements
tab. Consequently, this report includes the Public School System and the Economic Development
Authority as component units and excludes related organizations such as the Suffolk
Redevelopment and Housing Authority, the Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority, and the
Western Tidewater Water Authority.



The City maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with the
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City Council.
Budgetary control is maintained at the expenditure level of each department using an
encumbrance accounting system. Open encumbrances are reporied within the appropriate
classification of “reserved” fund balance at June 30, 2013. A description of the procedures
utilized to establish budgetary data is presented in Note 1D within the Notes to Financial
Statements tab.

Economic Activit

Suffolk remains one of Virginia's fastest growing cities. The region continues to attract, develop
and nurture business and industry. The attractive business climate and quality of life has garnered
some attention and accolades for Suffolk. CNN Money Magazine recognized Suffolk among the
“Top 100 Best Small Cities to Live”. In 2012, Suffolk ranked #9 out of 25 in CNN Money annual
“Where the Jobs Are” classification,

In 2012 fifty-nine companies invested over $62 million in creating new business operations and
thirty six existing companies invested over $32 million, which combined is upwards of $94
million in total economic investment directly into Suffolk. This resulted in the creation of 1,957
new jobs. Suffolk continued to focus on specific targeted business sectors, which consisted of:
Warehousing & Distribution, Office & Administration, Medical, Retail, Modeling/Simulation &
Technology, Advanced Manufacturing, Hospitality and Food & Beverage Processing. Mod/Sim
& Technology was the strongest performer in 2012, boosted by the pending influx of
approximately 1,500 Navy Cyber Forces staff personnel moving into the former U.S. Joint Forces
Command site in North Suffolk, Naval Network Warfare Command (NNWC), Navy Cyber
Defense Operations Command (NCDOC) and support staff from U.S. Fleet Cyber
Command/U.S. TENTH fleet have joined Navy Cyber Forces in this move. At their new
headquarters in Suffolk the commands and supporting staff will continue their mission of
securing the United States Navy's assets and infrastructure.

Several noteworthy Warehousing & Distribution projects were conducted in 2012 involving
expanding or moving into substantial warehouse space. Advanced Manufacturing was also a
strong contender in 2012, with major employers buying new equipment to modernize operations.
Food & Beverage processors such as Unilever/Lipton, Massimo Zanetti and Continental
Terminals all showed growth in continued interest in their business sectors which led to
substantial investments in 2013.

Expanding and New Business Highlights January 1 - December 31, 2012

Expanding Business Sector Investment
Dana Corporation Distribution $8,300,000
Massimo Zanetti Food and Beverage. $5,000,000
Virginia Neurology & Sleep Center Medical $3,200,000
Now Care Urgent Care Medical $3,000,000
Continental Terminals Food and Beverage $2,700,000
Elizabeth River Lawn & Landscaping Lawn Care $1,500,000
Salvation Army Other $1,200,000

Dollar Tree Retail $1,200,000



Suffolk economic development opportunities have continued to grow throughout 2012. The
following chart highlights some of this activity.

New Business

Cyber Command

Main Street Marketplace
Montessori Academy
Sumitomo

Nuts for Wildlife
Harper’s Table

Sector
Technology

Retail

Other

Distribution

Food and Beverage
Retail

Investment
$54,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,650,000
$1,000,000
$600,000
$250,000

Over the past 12 years Suffolk has also outpaced its neighboring Hampton Roads cities in
population growth by a wide margin. Where some saw a decrease in population, Suffolk grew by

a whopping 35.8%.

Hampton Roads population growth by city

City 2000
Hampton 146,437
Portsmouth 100,565
NewportHews 180,697
Norfolk 234,403
Virginta Beach 425527
Chesapeake 199,184
Suffolk 63,677
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2012 % of Change

138,848
97,450
183,331
245,803
447,489
228,210
86,463
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1.5%
4.9%
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This population trend is projected to continue over the foreseeable future. By 2034, we expect to
see an increase in population by 113%. Furthermore, median household income (MHI) has grown
in the City by 58% from 2000 to 2011 making the City, with a current MHI of $65,104, the
second highest in the region and higher than both the state MHI ($61,406) and the national MHI
($51,914).

200,000 - Suffolk Population Growth and
180, (MM} Projections

160,000
140,001
120,000 -
100,00 -
80,000 -
60,000
40,000 -
20,000
(' i

1 1 13 2 T2
1980 1990 2000 203 2008 2010 2020 2030 2034

Source: 1. Hampton Roads Planning District Commission; 2. Virginia Employment Commission

This residential growth and change requires the City to be proactive in planning for its future to
insure efficient and effective delivery of services and a high quality of life for its citizens. By
managing Suffolk’s residential and commercial development, however, the City continues to
offer families and businesses plenty of room to live, work and play.

Long-term Financial Planning

City Council and City Management maintain their visionary process in their commitment to
planning for the future of the City of Suffolk. Through a series of retreats and work sessions,
City Council has established priorities as the guiding principles to move the city into the twenty-
first century and to develop partnerships to further the City’s objectives. Financial planning is
further extended with the aid of financial advisors for bond issues and rate consultants for utility
rate analysis.

In planning for the specific initiatives under these priorities, the City’s adopted ten-year Capital
Improvement Plan represents a planned schedule of the City’s needed expenditures for physical
improvements over the next decade. The Capital Improvements Plan which covers the ten-year
period from fiscal year 2014 through fiscal year 2023 totals approximately $747 million. Of this
amount, water and sewer projecis are estimated at $214 million, while general government
projects are estimated at $533 million.

Financial policies are vital in maintaining consistency and focus. One of the financial policies
continually reviewed is the fund balance levels. The ratio of unassigned General Fund balance as
a percentage of budgeted governmental funds expenditures, (net of the general fund contribution
to the Schools, transfers to other governmental funds, and Capital Projects fund expenditures)
plus the budgeted expenditures in the School Operating and Food Service Funds indicates the
ability of the City to cope with unexpected financial challenges or emergencies. The larger the
unassigned General Fund balance, the greater the City's ability to cope with these potential



financial emergencies and fluctuations in revenue cycles. The City has established a target rate of
12% at the close of each fiscal year. At June 30, 2013 the fund balance ratio exceeded the target.

Financial policies were developed for the Utility Fund which provided for a written
documentation of many sound business practices. Categories include financial independence,
target percentage for unrestricted cash and long term investments, debt service coverage ratios,
plus policies for asset replacement and system extension. The Utility Fund is further governed by
revenue bond Master Trust Indenture requirements.

Awards and Recognition

Bond Ratings AA+

The City of Suffolk’s received bond rating upgrades in June 2011 from Standard and Poor's and
Fitch rating agencies to AA+. The City is rated Aa2 by Moody’s. The City’s Aa2 and AA+ bond
ratings were affirmed in July 2013 by Moody's, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch rating agencies.
This is a validation of the City's creditworthiness and financial strength.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Suffolk,
Virginia for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012,
representing the twenty-ninth consecutive year that the City has received this award. The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

Annual Budget

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
presented a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the City of Suffolk, Virginia for its
annual budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012. In order to receive this award, a
governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy
document, as an operations guide, as a financial plan, and as a communications device. This is
the fourth consecutive year for this recognition as it is valid for a one year period.

America’s Best Places to Live for 2012

Suffolk has been named as one of America’s Best Places to Live for 2012 by CNN Money
Magazine. The City of Suffolk was named the 9" best community in CNN Best Places to Live
Top 25 List of “Where the Jobs Are” for 2012. Statistics were used from 2000 to 2011 for areas
which were experiencing job and population growth and where unemployment was below the
national average. The City of Suffolk experienced a 43% increase during this time frame. The
City of Suffolk was also named in CNN Money Magazine’s 100 Best Small Cities to Live in
2010. We are well aware of Suffolk’s unique and diverse offerings, from its historic downtown
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and rich farmland to its high-tech corridor and beautiful recreational offerings. It is wonderful
that others are learning what we already know: whether it's to work, live or play...It’s a good
time to be in Suffolk.”

Acknowledgments

During the year, the staff of the Finance department rendered professional and knowledgeable
services to the City. We are most appreciative of these efforts and take this opportunity to
recognize these outstanding public servants.

The City Council’s oversight of the financial affairs of the City has resulted in the City’s strong
financial position and Council is commended for the policies and practices which have made it
SO.

Respectfully,
Selena Cuffee-Glen&’(/ Lenora Reid, €PA

City Manager Director of Finance
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:: Cherry Bekaert”

CPAs & Advisors

Report of independent Auditor

To the City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of City of Suffolk, Virginia (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducied our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cilties and Towns, issued by the Auditor of
Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards and specifications require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Suffolk, Virginia, as of
June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis-of-Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Oulflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, effective July 1, 2012. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and pension and other postemployment benefits
information on pages 3-11, 66-70 and 71-72, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial stalements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The Introductory Section, Other Supplementary Information, and
the Statistical Section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presenied for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Slates, Local
Governments, and Non-FProfit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Other Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the
responsibilty of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjecled to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the Other Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial stalements as a whole.

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 2013,
on our consideration of City of Suffolk, Virginia's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%ﬁw (Ch

Richmond, Virginia
December 17, 2013



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Suffolk, Virginia’s (the “City”) comprehensive annual financial report presents a
discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Please
read this in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the front of this report and the City's basic financial
statements following this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The government-wide financial statements report information about the City as a whole using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting,.

e The City’s total net position (assets less liabilities) on a government-wide basis was $550.4 million at
June 30, 2013. Of this balance, $383.5 million is attributed to the governmental activities and $166.9
million to the business-type activities.

e For fiscal year 2013, taxes and other general revenues of the City’s governmental activities amounted to
$157.8 million and net program expenses $142.4 million, which resulted in an increase from 2012 in net
position for the City’s governmental activities of $15.4 million.

e Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $52 million, expenses were $48.5 million and
transfers to the general fund were $2.2 million, which resulted in an increase of net position for the City’s
business-type activities of $1.3 million.

¢ The City maintained its AA+ bond rating from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch rating agencies, and Aa2 by
Moody’s during fiscal year 2013.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2) Fund
financial statements, and 3) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required and other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. Government-wide financial reporting consists of two
statements: the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all City assets and deferred outflows of resources, if any,
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, if any, with the difference between the two reported as net
position. Qver time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



The Statement of Activities presents information identifying how net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, some items of revenues and expenses are reported in
this statement that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into the following categories:

¢ Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here including general
government, public safety, public works, education, health and welfare, parks and recreation and
economic and community development.

e Business-type activities — The City’s water and sewer services are reported here as well as the City’s
stormwater utility, and the refuse collection service. These services are supported by charges for services
based on use.

e Component Units — The City includes two separate legal entities in its report — the Suffolk School Board
and the Economic Development Authority of the City of Suffolk. While legally separate, the City is
financially accountable and provides operating and capital funding to these component units,

Fund Financial Statetnents

Fund financial statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. Traditional users of government
financial statements will find the fund financial statement presentation more familiar. The focus is now on the
City’s most significant funds. The fund financial statements are divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on current sources and uses of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds’ statements for the General, Capital Projects, Road Maintenance and Debt Service funds.
Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.



Proprietary Funds - The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations, the activities of the stormwater utility
fund, and the refuse collection services. Internal Service funds are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account
for its fleet management, information technology and insurance programs.

Fiduciary Funds — The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is similar to that of the proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found following the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Required Supplementary Information — In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this section
presents budgetary comparison schedules, a schedule of funding progress for defined benefit pension plan and an
analysis of funding progress for other post-employment benefits.

Other Supplementary Information — This section of the report presents combining and individual fund
statements and schedules.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

Net Position
(In Millions)
Governmental Activities Business-lype Aclivitics Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 1580 § 1515 % 8.0 5 754 3% 2470 % 2269
Capital and other non-current assets 470.0 465.4 400.3 376.1 870.3 841.5
Total assets 628.0 616.9 489.3 451.5 1,117.3 1,068.4
Current and other liabilities 15.5 15.3 16.1 1.2 36 26.5
Long-term Habilities 229.1 233.6 306.3 274.7 535.4 508.3
Total lishilities 244.6 248.9 322.4 285.9 567.0 534.8
Net position:
Net investment in capital assels 2874 3354 153.1 157.1 440.5 492.5
Restricled 7.0 6.1 21 20 9.1 8.1
Unrestricted 89.1 26.5 11.7 6.5 100.8 33.0
Net position 5 3835 % 3680 § 166.9 % 1656 % 5504 % 533.6




The City’s combined net position (which is the City’s bottom line) grew by 3.1% or $16.8 million in fiscal year
2013, of which approximately 1.7% represents resources that are subject to exiernal restrictions or enabling
legislation. Net investment in capital assets of $440.5 million comprises 80.0% of the net position. These assets
are not available for future expenses because they are land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements, machinery
and equipment used to provide services to citizens.

The City has a solid financial position with 18.3% of net position, or $100.8 million, as unrestricted. The
unrestricted portion of net position is available to allow the City to provide services to citizens.

The increase in net position in the governmental activities is due primarily to the increase in the capital assets and
a decrease in the long term liabilities.

Statement of Activities

The following table summarizes the changes in net position for governmental and business-type activities:

Change in Net Position
{In Millions)
Governmental Activilies Business-lype Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services s 107 5 59 S 487 8§ 430 35 594 8 48.9
Operating grants and contributions 371 14,7 - - 371 14.7
Capital grants and contributions 6.7 48.3 24 L1 9.1 49.4
General revenues:
Real estate and property laxes 104.6 103.6 - - 104.6 103.6
Other taxes 36.4 36.9 - - 364 36.9
Grants and contributions, not restricted 13.6 13.1 - - 13.6 13.1
Unrestricted investment eamings 1.3 A 0.7 0.8 20 1.9
Miscellancous 4.3 4.2 0.2 0.5 4.5 4.7
Total revenues 214.7 227.8 52.0 45.4 266.7 273.2
Expenses:
General government 17.6 12.6 - - 17.6 12.6
Judicial 8.1 7.6 - - 8.1 16
Public safety 494 48.6 - - 494 48.6
Public works 329 37.1 - - 329 371
Health and welfare 13.0 12.6 - - 13.0 12.6
Transportation 0.9 - S = 0.9 -
Education 49.4 44.2 - - 49.4 44.2
Parks, recreation, cultural 85 79 - - 8.5 79
Community development 8.1 6.0 - - 8.1 6.0
Interest on long-term debt 9.0 11.8 - - 9.0 11.8
Unility - - 40.1 359 40.1 359
Refuse collection services - - 5.2 5.7 5.2 57
Stormwater utility - - 3.2 3.1 3.2 3.1
Total expenses 196.9 188.4 48.5 44.7 245.4 233.1
Excess of revenues over expenses 17.8 394 3.5 0.7 21.3 40.1
Capital donation to component unit (4.5) - - - (4.5) -
Transfers 2.2 2.0 (2.2) {2.0) s &
Change in net position 15.5 41.4 1.3 (1.3) i6.8 40.1
Net position - beginning 368.0 326.6 165.6 166.9 531.6 493.5
Net position - ending S 3835 3 368.0 S 1669 3 1656  § 5504 & 533.6




Revenue Highlights:

Real estate and personal property tax revenue, the City’s largest revenue source, totaled $104.6 million and
$103.6 million in fiscal year 2013 and 2012 respectively. The chart following indicates the growth in the General
Property Taxes revenue over the past ten years. The increase in the real estate and personal property taxes is due
to increase in assessed value of the personal property.

General Property Tax Revenue
120
100 - ————o— 2
80
£
2 60
e
40
20
0 - =
F & O S S S
& & & & & Y]
Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports 2004 - 2013

Other Local Taxes are comprised of revenue from local sales tax, meals, lodging, and utilities remained consistent
from fiscal year 2012 into fiscal year 2013.

Expense Highlights:

The City is committed to ensuring the highest level of safety for its citizens and has expended $49.4 million
towards public safety efforts.

Education continues to be one of the City’s highest priorities and commitments representing $49.4 million, an
increase in fiscal year 2013 by $5.2 million.

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities are made up of Public Utilities, Stormwater Ultilities, and Refuse Collection services.

Revenue Highlights:

Charges for services, including water and sewer fees, stormwater utility fees and refuse collection fees represent
03.6% of the total revenues collected. These revenues increased from fiscal year 2012 to 2013 due to an increase
in the rates for water and sewer,



Expense Highlights:

Utility Fund expenses were $40.1 million of which 24.2% is depreciation and amortization expenses. The increase
in the utility fund expenses is due to an increase in the depreciation and amortization, which increased during the
year as a result of the completion of capital projects. Stormwater expenses were $3.2 million for fiscal year 2013,
which is consistent with fiscal year 2012. The refuse fund expenses were $5.2 million in fiscal year 2013, a
decrease from fiscal year 2012 due to the fact that fiscal year 2012 was the initial year of the refuse fund and there
were initial costs in 2012 for refuse containers.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$121.5 million. Approximately 36.2% of this amount is available for spending at the government’s discretion
(unassigned fund balance). Fund Balance is divided into five classifications: non-spendable, restricted,
committed, assigned and unassigned.

Gencral Fund: The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the General Fund balance was $56.1 million of which $43.9 million represents unassigned fund balance
of the General Fund. The net increase to fund balance for the General Fund for 2013 was $1.6 million. This
increase was principally due to the increase in the revenue from charges for services, specifically the revenue
from billing of EMS services,

As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total budgeted expenditures. The City has a financial policy goal that unassigned fund
balance should be greater than 12%. The restricted portion of fund balance, $0.6 million reflects restricted
cash for unspent grant funds and developer deposits. The committed portion, $9.9 million is comprised of a
capital project reserve and economic incentives.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund has a fund balance of $2.5 million. The General Fund routinely
transfers monies to this fund to meet debt service requirements,

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund accounts for all construction projects of general public
improvements, excluding capital projects related to business-type activities, which are accounted for
elsewhere. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $44.4 million, $34.5 million was
committed for contracts and purchase orders in process, and the balance of $9.9 million are unspent bond
proceeds for subsequent years’ projects. The City’s top five construction projects consisted of the following
in fiscal year 2013:

Improvements to Nansemond Parkway/Shoulders Hill Road

Replacement of Southern Elementary School

New Municipal Center

Village and Neighborhood Improvements

Airport Runway Safety Area Extension

3



Proprietary funds: The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Enterprise funds: The City’s enterprise funds account for its water and sewer operations, stormwater utility
efforts, and refuse collection services. The net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the current fiscal
year totaled $166.9 million.

Internal service funds: The internal service funds are used to account for entity-wide fleet management,
information technology and risk management programs.  The total net position at the end of the current
fiscal year was $33.0 million. Each of the internal service funds finished this year with positive changes in
net position.

Trust funds: The City funded $1.9 million in other postemployment benefits in the OPEB Trust Fund. The City
participates in the Virginia Pooled OPEB Trust Fund. In fiscal year 2013, the City fully funded its annual
contribution to the fund as calculated by the actuaries and there is now $17.4 million in the QPEB Trust Fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2013,
totaled $870.4 million, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, machinery and equipment and construction in
progress.

Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
(in Millions)
Governmental Activilies Business-type Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 237 % 282 § 56 $ 54 % 293% 336
Construction in progress 63.7 45.7 98.6 80.6 162.3 126.3
Buildings 48.4 48.5 51.9 50.7 100.3 g9.2
Infrastructure 293.0 3128 - - 293.0 312.8
Improvements other than buildings 14.9 7.8 194.2 192.5 208.1 200.3
Machinery and equipment 25.6 22.4 50.1 46.9 75.7 69.3
Intangibles 0.7 - 0.0 - 0.7 -
Total $ 47008 4654 $ 4004 $ 3761 $§ 8704 $ 841.5




Capital Assets
Machineryand Land

equipment
9%

Intangibles
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other than
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24%
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Buildings

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total outstanding debt of $506.8 million.
Claims payable, compensated absences and premiums and other credits are not included in these figures.

Outstanding Debt (in millions)
Gowemmental Activties Business-type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Bonds payable $ 2029 3 2055 $ 2935 § 2655 $ 4964 § 4710
Capital leases 54 4.4 2.3 2.7 7.7 7.1
Loans and notes payable 2.7 7.1 - 5 2.7 7.1
Total $ 211.0 $ 2170 §$ 2958 $§ 2682 § 5068 $ 4852

The Commonwealth of Virginia limits the amount of general obligation debt outstanding to 10% of the locality’s
assessed value of real property, which is $880.5 million for 2013. Of the debt shown above, only $347.9 million is

general obligation debt; the balance is pledged with water and sewer utility revenues.

The City Charter further limits this general obligation limit to 7% of the City’s assessed value of real property or
$616.4 million. City financial policies have further restricted the debt ratio to 4% or $352.2 million to reflect its
conservative use of borrowed monies. The City’s outstanding general obligation debt is below both limitations

representing the City’s conservative debt borrowing policy.

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 9.

10



ECONOMIC FACTORS

e The City’s economic development initiatives created over 1,957 new jobs and over $94 million dollars in new
capital investment in the City during the calendar year.

o For fiscal year 2013, the City’s tax rate remained the same as the prior year at $0.97 per $100 and remains the
second lowest tax rate in the region.

o Utility rates increased as of July 1, 2013 to $7.13 per 100 cubic feet for water and $5.35 per 100 cubic feet for
sewer due to increasing debt service requirements.

* Population in the City increased 19.7% in the last ten years. This is significant as other cities within the region
have seen a decline.

Additional information on relevant economic factors can be found in the Letter of Transmittal.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the City's
Department of Finance, 441 Market Street, Suffolk, Virginia, 23439,

11
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted (Note 2)

Receivables, net {(Note 3)
Due from other governments (Note 4}
Due from cemponent units {Note 6)
Inventories
Prepaid items
OPEB asset (Note 12)
Prepaid bond costs
Due from developer
Capital assets; (Note 7)
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, nct

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accnted interest payable
Due to Primary Government (Note 6)
Due to other governments
Deposits and amounts held for others
Uneamed revenue (Note 8)
Long-term liabilities: (Note 9)

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investrent in capital assets
Restricied:

Debt service

Repair and maintenance

Operating reserves

Other governmenial purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

The Notes to Financial Statemenis are
an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

EXHIBIT 1

June 38, 2013
Primary Government Component Units

Business- Economic
Governmental type Development

Activities Activities Total School Board Authority
§ 96844350 S5 13475727 5 110320077 § 22900798 S 2,652,128
42,146,968 65,120,711 107,267,679 10,963 1,352,706
9,636,945 7,316,995 16,953,940 219,418 403,637

4,259,694 - 4,259,694 5,189,419 -

568,605 - 568,605 - -
333,520 97.191 430,711 501,155 14,342,654

- - - 95,000 -

1,086,921 145,533 1,232,454 - -
1,979,398 2,791,275 4,770,673 - 94,643

1,177,182 - 1,177,182 - -
87,440,452 104,111,565 191,552,017 6,416,523 1,021,162
382,570,358 206,223,556 678,793.914 125,447,272 26,205,643
628,044,393 489,282,553 1,117,326.946 160,780,548 46,072,573
6,730,876 6,062,523 12,793,399 1,727,711 42,713

447,518 50,889 498,407 19,967,150 -
2,878,735 4,096,009 6,974,744 - 203,695
- - - - 568.605

- 5,424,112 5424,112 58,171 -

1,128,612 32,827 1,161,439 = =
4,306,025 406,703 4,712,728 - 123,525
19,805,840 2,851,913 22,657,753 163,935 787,539
209,294,297 303,451,113 512,745,410 4,471,881 11,643,723
244,591,903 322,376,089 566,967,992 26,388,848 13,369,800
287,319,247 153,147,421 440,466,668 131,863,795 14,795,543
392,219 - 392,219 - 1,149,011

2,669,183 500,000 3,169,183 - -

- 1,579,370 1,579,370 - -

3,989,110 - 3,989,110 - -
89,082,731 11,679,673 100,762,404 2,527,905 16,758,219
S 383452490 § 166906464 § 550358954 S5 134,390,700 § 32,702,773

12



s say g0 und pudau an

Ll AN SUMUNTLG [PESURULL () SN G E
ELUTOL'TE  § DOL16E°HEI TSO'BSE0SS  §  t9r'906'991 §  O06'TSH'ERE § ot 3unf e vopgsod oy
SLY'SLE'LT FLYTLOLY) ICE'099'EES LBL'959'691 PSS E00°'R9E ‘1 Af e vopsod 1aN
86T LTL'Y (+C6'08T°EL) £19'869'01 LLGHT' 9L6'8T'S) uofisod 120 uy aFutyy
098 Cir's ISE'LEE'1S 6t+'019'951 06L'80C'1) 6ET61R'LS] SJajsuen) put sanusaas (Raued ey,

G - J 62L°991'T) 62L'991'T {§ oN) sIysues]

5 e (095'8TS'T) - (095'8T5't) 1un Ju3uodutos 0) uohnqUILE) |endey

0SS'E 918’08 rET666'E 09" LtL £65°LET' Auadesd pur Asuows Jo 25N WO} SINUIARI PASLNSAIN[)

. SO9'E0L'T - - - sjooyos Junediaued wouy uapruyg o) vonnqauey

DIE'6OF'S OLT'SSE LY - - - UOHRGLILO Y[oIYng Jo AN
. 009'L0T°1 £IsoIsr 66T91T FITr6L't SNOAuC]RISIN

- = SRFTTYE - SBI'HIO'EI sunufoxd
3131335 01 PAAMNNSAI 100 SUCHINGLIUOD PUE SIULIN

- - TSI'ETL - TEI'ETL SN} [E30] YO

- - 6LG'$9L°L - GL6'S91'] 2L} UoNEPIOITY

- - 006'1L0°1 - 006'120't saxey Suidpory

- - EES'EIEN - LESEIEL SINTI 02ITAOE

- - 0L8' LTt - 0Le'LrT'e SINTT IFUIBY ARIY3A 1000y

- - 128209 - 126209 SIXT] UDHTINLWO])

- . SEFOGET - BEF'06ET saxet A

- - TITTSL - TITTSrL $INCL S|EARY

- - L6T'LLT'Y o L6TLLT9 SBATI PSURIY] SSIULSRE

- - FEFTEL'S - FEF'FEL'R §2XC] 35N puc 5308

. S ir9'sto'tol = 1H9'STO' t0H saxe Auadoly

SINUAAAS [RIIuIY
(T95°589) (SLT'RTOTHY) - - - - 050°118'L8  §  TELO9EFT S GLYSRE'LS s1un wavodusos |e10),
(£95°589} - 0 - - e - 96TCER'| BSE'BYST Apogmy awdoaaeg suouodg
- (SLTBTY'TY) - e - H - 050'18'LR § 96l ITE'9I6TS] pitog jooyds
SSLINM ININOINOD

S 0 (QER'LI6'6E]) §  [9F'BSHT (EO£0LETHD) § 6CL650'6 EIOSOILE  § OTO9EE'6S  §  BOSTIT'SHT uSWAA0n Acwilg jeia |,

- - Lor'gst'c LOF'BSHT e H99E9ET - SI1E059'8 CIS'S55°8F 1w adAy-ssauisng jeia ],
186°001°1 1860011 e - - 9£TS0E'9 SETHOT'S asnjay
886°01T'1 BRG'01T"Y - - J BL909'r 0r9'6tT'E Aunn saresuolg
86191 B6r'or! - +99'£9€'C - 16F'+88'LE Ligoror Aupn

sanpanoe adAssouisng

- - (£0L'0LE'Tr1) - {E0E°0LE'TEL) $90°969°9 EI°S0ELE S0L'689°01 980°L68'961 SAANIE [MIUABUIIA0T [E10],

(BLR'BGO'R) - {828'866'8) e S - BL8°866°8 193p tasn-Juo) ua Jssu(
(986'9L5'9) - {986'9Lt'9) - 0E9°TTS' cLi'eot 88L°660'8 uawdojassp Aunuo)
(806'€9T'L) - {806'E9C"L) IET'LE] L9T19¢ LETTLL £r9'oct's [RININD PRIC *UOHEII ‘St
(181'stT'6t) - (181'SKT'68) - 6L8'0FL - 090'98¢° 6+ uoneInpg
(S£8°595) - (6£8'59¢) $00'651 it 1L6'Lt £16'888 uoyicuodsuey g,
(6E0'tLL'T) . (GED'FLL'T) - LoL'861'E - S08'TLA'T] T30 PUT NCIE
(CLTeeT'L) - (TLe'seT't) rBS 080’ 658 LS 10T 899°691°1 ERE'EFE'TE SYlom g
(ErS'898'TH) - (EPS'E98'IH) - SBOFIT'E TLOOEIE E09°EIF 6 K1ages Sugng
(+86°616'F) g (rB6'6F6"t) - SIE'9LR'T 9T619E SCUBEL'R donensiunupe [Topng
(L£9'166'6) - $ (LL9'166') § Str'eetT 9R0°L9T § 6SL008F § 99485571l HONENSIUIIPE IUAWIACT [EU3D)
SINANIL [EIUMUWIIACLY
- LN NNHIAQD AUVINIHI
AEogny patoy jooyds oL SIMANY SINANDY SUOHINGEINGD) SUOPINHIL0) EIIVET] sasualxy SUIEIT0.,J/sucyioun §
wawdopaagg alfy ITILIZA0S) pue sjuean pue sjuesn Aoy sadtaong)y
DUUOUOYY -ssaujsngy Endeny dunwadg
T sy ssuodwoy [CE T g rTe,
UOIIS0 1IN UJ SITUTH) pub InuaAaY (suadvg) 1oy T SInuaAey wmasog
£10T ‘0 3unf papuy soay
SALLIALLDY 40 INIWALVLS

VINIDHIA "NTOZ4NS 30 ALID
T LIFIEIX3A



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 3

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 20, 2013
Total
Capital Road Debt Nonmajor Governmental
General Projects Maini ° Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 47522440 0§ 1346938 5 13,502.429 2060760 S5 3,182942 $ 79,737,960
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted (Note 2} 1,956,672 34,569,024 2,669,183 192,219 2,032,438 41,619,536
Receivables, net (Note 3) 9,082,155 44,863 21,318 - 271,227 9,419,563
Due from other governmental units (Note 4) 3478117 272,909 - - 508,668 4,259,694
Due from other Tunds (Note 5) 604,290 - - - - 604,290
Due from component units 568,605 - - - - 568,605
Inventories 9,794 - - - 81,925 93,719
Total assets § 63222073 S 48356,185 § 16,192,930 2452979 $ 6078200 $ 136,302,367
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1082449 5 3295205 § 1,030,151 - 5 526,321 $ 5934.126
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 363,966 - 71411 - 2,853 438,230
Payables from resiricied asse1s 461,661 666,951 - - - 1,128,612
Due to other funds {Note 5) - - - - 604,290 604,290
Unavailable revenues 5,244,415 - 727,600 - 714,137 6.686.152
Total liabilivies 7.152.491 1,962,156 1,829,162 - 1.847.601 14,791,410
FUND BALANCES (NOTE 16)
Nonspendable 9,794 - - & &5 9,794
Resricted 565,969 9,889,915 2,669,183 392219 1,402,204 14,919,490
Committed 9,909,530 34.504,114 8,830,070 2,060,760 2,839,333 58,143,807
Assigned 1,646,157 - 2,864,515 - - 4,510,672
Unassigned 43,938,132 - - - {10,938) 43,927,194
Total fund balances 56.069.582 44,394,029 14,363,768 2,452,979 4,230,599 121,510,957
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 63222073 § 48,356,185 S 16,192,930 2452979 § 6078200 $ 136.302.367

Total fund balances - governmental funds
Amounts reporied for governmental activities in 1he Statement of
Net Position are different because;
Capntal assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are
nol reported in the funds.
Unavailable revenue represents amounts that were not avaulable to fund cumrent expenditures and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for cumment period expenditures and therefore
are not reported in the funds
Prepaid bond costs
OPEB asset
Long-term receivables
Interest on Jong-term debt is not accrued in the govemmental funds, but rther is recognized
as an expenditure when due.
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable , are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
General obligation bonds, literary fund and Section 108 loans
Landfill liability
Unamortized premiums and other credits on bonds
Compensated absences
Uncamed revenue not recorded in the funds as it did not anise from current financial
resources relating 1o the golf course lease agreement
The intemnal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities such as
information technology, fleet management, and insurance io individual funds, The assets and
ltabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position
Net position of govemmental activities

The Nates te Financial Statements are 14
an integral part of this statement.

Primary
Government
5 121,510,957

446,602,910
4393415
1,979,398
1,040,105
1.177.182

(2.872.934)
(206,669,620)
(1.775.600)
18,262,822)

(4,632,523}

(2,013,288)

32,975,319
$ 383,452,490



REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes
Other local 1axes

Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses

Fines and forfeilures
Revenue from use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth
Revenue from the Federal government
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General govemnmment administration
Judicial administration
Public salety
Public works
Health and welfare
Transportation
Education
Parks, recreation, and cubtural
Communitly development
Nondepartmenial
Capital outlay
Diebt service:
Principal retirement
Bond issuance costs
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Excess {deficiency) of revenucs
overf{under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refunding Bonds issued
General obligations bonds issued
Premiums on bonds issued
Payment 1o escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources {uses), net

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at July 1

EXHIBIT 4

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended Junc 30, 2013
Total
Capital Road Debt Nenmajor Governmental
General Projects Maintenance Service Funds Funds

S 103,041,769 8 - $ - - s 1,535670 & 104,577,439
36,379,136 - - - - 36,379,136
1,062,718 - 222,105 - - 1,284,823
1,048,276 - - - - 1,048,276
608,207 21 36,008 319,t03 236,210 1,199,549
4,902,494 - 1,309,392 - 787,366 6,999,252
1,225,114 165,743 26,954 - 811,955 2,229,766
20,679,307 4,569,967 20,105,759 - 667,455 46,022,488
4,867,266 1,026,340 - - 3,827,719 9,721,325
173,814,287 5,762,071 21,700.218 319,103 7.866,375 209,462,054
14,198,922 - - - 972,113 15,171,035
71.376,176 - - - 710,398 8,086,574
45,402,751 - - - 3,033,004 48,435,845
1,749,884 - 17,509,200 - 205,956 19,465,040
12,644,543 - - - 76,022 12,920,565
- - - - 488,337 B88,337
49,163,443 - - - 222,617 49,386,060
7,542,226 - - - 108,770 7,650,996
7.185,292 - - R77.517 8,062,809
474,540 - - - - 474,540

. 20,951,351 - - - 20,951,351

- - - 15,512,377 - 15,512,377

- - - 168,343 - 168,343

- - - 9,702,110 - 9,702,110
145,937,777 20,951,351 17.509.200 25,382,830 7.094,824 216,875,982
27.876.510 (15,189,280} 4,191,018 {25,063,727) 771.551 (7.413.928)
o = - 11,520,000 - 11,520,000

- 9,890,000 - - - 9,890,000

- 1,110,000 - 2,212,503 - 3,322,503
- - - {13,568,249) - (13,568,249)
2,296,878 7,130,975 - 24,981,083 1,004,832 35,363,768
(28,506,012) - (2,276 407) - (2,394.986) (33,177,405)
(26,259,134} 18.130,975 2,276,407) 25,145,337 {1,390,154) 13,350,617
1,617,376 2,941,695 1,914,611 81.610 (618,603) 5.936,689
54,452,206 41,452,334 12,449,157 2,371,369 4.849,202 115,574,268
$ 56,069,582 % 44,394,029 § 14,363,768 2452979 § 4,230,599  §  121.510,957

Fund balances at June 30

The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINLA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Change in fund balance - total governmental funds
Adjustmenis for the Stalement of Activities:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmenal activities report depreciation expense
to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets.

Capital outlay

Depreciation expense
Contribution of Land to Component Unit
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are nei reported as revenues in
the funds.
Unavailable Revenues
Lease revenue paid in form of leasehold improvements

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmemal funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when deb is first issued, whereas these amounts are defereed and amortized in the Siatement of
Aclivilies.

Principal repayment and payments 10 escrow agent

Deferred Bond issuance costs, and net change in bond losses
Proceeds from issuance of new debt

Net change in bond premiums

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Accrued interest payable
Change in compensated absences
Change in OPEB asset

Change in landfill liabiliy

The internal service funds are used by management ta charge the costs of the informavion technology, fleet management,
and nsurance. The change in net position of the intemal service funds are reported with governmental activivies,
Change in net position of governmental activities

The Motes to Financial Statements are 16
an integral part of this ststement.

1)

S

EXHIBIT 4

Total
Governmental
Funds

5,936,689

23.029,711

(16,991,002)
(4,528,558}

(35.457)
356,000

29,080,626
{517,749)
(21,410,000

(2.223,557)

350,656
(507,672)
166,669
318,521

2,424,059

$ 1548936



EXHIBIT 5
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 9681922 S 3,793,805 S 13475727 S 17,106,390
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 65,120,711 - 65,120,711 527,432
Receivables, net 6,843,271 473,724 7.316,995 217,382
Inventories 97,191 - 97,191 240,801
Total current assels 81,743,005 4,267,529 86,010,624 18,092,005
Noncurrent assets:
OPEB asset 115,001 30,532 145,513 46,816
Prepaid bond issuance costs 2,791,275 - 2,791,275 -
Land and construction in progress 104,111,565 - 104,111,565 914,066
Orher capital assets, net 296,201,714 21,842 296,223,556 22,493,834
Total noncurrent assels 403,219,555 52,374 403,271,929 23,454,716
Total assels 484,962,650 4,319,903 489,282,553 41,546,721
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,367,858 226,601 1,594,459 796,750
Accounts payable from restricted resources 4,468,064 - 4,468,064 -
Accrued payroll and related habilities 37,789 13,100 50,889 9,288
Due 10 other governments 542,112 - 5424,112 -
Unearned revenues 406,703 - 406,703 -
Deposits payable 32,827 - 32,827 -
Claims payable - - - 1,694,423
Accrued interest payable 4,096,009 - 4,096,009 5,801
Compensated absences 22,929 8,148 31,077 24,519
Bonds and leases payable 2,820,836 - 2,820,836 1,574,756
Total current liabilities 18,677,127 247,849 18,924,976 4,105,537
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 386,389 157,410 543,799 154,104
Claims payable - - - 1,538,323
Bonds and leases payable 302,907,314 - 302,907,314 2,713,438
Total noncarrent liabilities 303,293,703 157,410 303,451,113 4,465,865
Total liabilitics 321,970,830 405,259 322,376,089 8,571,402
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital asscts 153,125,579 21,842 153,147,421 19,059,706
Restricied:
Other purposes 2,079,370 - 2,079,370 527432
Unrestricted 7,786,871 3,892,802 11,679,673 13,388,181
Total net position 5 162,991,820 § 3914644 5 166,906,464 $ 32,975,319
The Notes to Financial Statements are 17

an integral part of this stalement.



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 39, 2013

EXHIBIT 6

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds ‘Total Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 37,884,451 $ 10,765.864 § 48,650,315 $ 32,467,361
Other 64,586 38,952 103,538 233,371
Total operating revenues 37,949,037 10,804,816 48,753,853 32,700,732
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 6,512,358 3,414,953 9,927,311 2,691,192
Self-insured claims - - - 12,311,758
Contractual services 633,878 1,845,795 2,479,673 1,595,221
Administration 2,482,503 2,758,254 5,240,757 949,641
Supplies 812,519 243,300 1,055,819 69,569
Repairs and mainlenance 999,247 16,309 1,015,556 99,407
Vehicle and power equipment — luel - - - 2,314,000
Vehicle and power equipment — supplies - - - 1,946,986
Computers and equipment - - - 520,004
Utilities 1,062,271 28,757 1,091,028 117,402
[nsurance - - - 2,088,586
OPEB - contributions o trust - - - 1,865,700
Bulk-water purchases 4,190,112 = 4,190,112 -
Depreciation and amortization 9,694,711 8,815 9,703,526 4,160,369
Building and equipment rental 1,148,060 60,402 1,208,462 113,503
Other charges 650,488 77.310 727,798 109,433
Total operating expenses 28,186,147 8,453,895 36,640,042 30,952,780
Operating income 9,762,890 2,350,921 12,113,811 1,747,952
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Gain on disposal of capital assets - - - 162,304
Interest income 724,001 71,377 731,378 58,045
Interest expense and other fiscal changes (10,246,122) - (13,246,122) (109,361}
Contribution to WTWA infrastructure (1,669,348) - {1.669,348) -
Rental income 112,761 - 112,761 -
Recovered Costs 10,262 - 10,262 -
Nonoperaling revenues {expenses), net (11,068,446} 7,377 (11,061,069) 110,988
(Loss) income before contnbutions and transfers (1,305,556) 2,358,298 1,052,742 1,858,940
Capital contributions 2,363,664 - 2,363,664 584,753
Transfers in 200,000 - 200,000 1,764,000
Transfers out {540,001) (1,826,728) (2,366,729) (1,783,634)
Change in net position 718,107 531,570 1,249,677 2,424,059
Net position at July | 162,273,713 3,383,074 165,656,787 30,551,260
Net position at June 30 $ 162,991,820 $ 3914644 § 166,906,464 $ 32,975,319

The Notes to Financial Statements are 18
an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

EXHIBIT 7

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities —
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 536,992,868 S 10,796876 S 47,789,744 § 32,631,870
Payments to employees (6,423,546) (3,388,896) (9,812,442) (2,744,702)
Payments to suppliers (9,252,428) (5,130,205) {14,382,633) (24,412,616)
Net cash provided by operating activilies 21,316,894 2,277,775 23,594,669 5,474,552
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 747,821 - 747,821 1,764,000
Transfers to other funds (615,001) (1,826,728) (2,441,729) {1,783,634)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
activities 132,820 (1,826,728) (1,693,908) (19,634)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (27,574,702) - (27,574,702) (6,719,646)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 43,911,310 - 43,911,310 2,961,000
Capital contributions 10,261 - 10,261 -
Principal paid on capital debt (2,981,913) - (2,981,913) (2,011,415)
Refunding proceeds placed in escrow (9,176,294) - (9,176,294) -
Bond issuance cosis (527,710) - (527,710) -
Gain on sale of assets - - - 162,304
Interest paid on capital debt {13,806,666) - {13,806,666) (118,037)
Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (10,145,714) - (10,145,714} (5,725,794)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Remtal income 112,761 - 112,761 -
Interest received 724,002 7377 731,379 58,045
Net cash provided by investing activities 836,763 7,377 844,140 58,045
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,140,763 458,424 12,599,187 (212,831)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning, July 1, 62,661,870 3,335,381 65,997,251 17.846,653
Ending, June 30 $74,802,633 S 3,793,805 $ 78,596,438 S 17,633,822
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,681,922 3,793,805 13,475,727 17,106,390
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 65,120,711 - 65,120,711 527,432
$74802,633 S 3,793.805 S 78,596,438 $ 17,633,822
{Continued)
The Notes to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this stalement. 19 (Continued)



RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activitics:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Receivables, net
Inventories
OPEB asset
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounis payable and accrued liabilitics
Accrued payroll and related liabilitics
Unearned revenue
Claims payable
Net cash provided by operating activitics

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Non-cash capilal contributions

Capitalized interest

The Noles to Financial Statements are
an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT 7

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

NET CASH

20

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities -
Non-Major Internal
Utility Fund Funds Total Service Funds
$ 9,762,890 $ 2,350921 S 12,113,811 § 1,747,952
9,694,711 8815 9,703,526 4,160,369
(1,044,575} (1,944) (1,046,519) (59,665)
19,677 - 19,677 (11,247)
(22,587) (5,997 (28,584) (9,196)
2,706,974 (100,077} 2,606,897 224,881
88,811 26,057 114,868 (53,509)
110,993 - 110,993 -

- - - (525,033)
521316894 § 2,277,775 § 23594669 S 5,474,552
$§ 2,363,665 S $ 2363665 S 584,753
$ 3990386 S - S 399038 S -



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

EXHIBIT 8

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013
OPEB
Trust Agency
Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,433,781 3 823,271
Total assets $ 17433781 § 823,271
LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others $ - $ 823,271
Total liabilities - 823,271
NET POSITION
Held in trust for OPEB benefits 17,433,781 -
Total net position $ 17433781 % -
The Notes to Financial Statements are 21

an integral part of this statement.



EXHIBIT 9
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

OPEB TRUST FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013
ADDITIONS
Employer contributions $ 1,865,700
Gain on Investments 1,471,809
Total additions 3,337,509
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative fees 14,702
Tota! deductions 14,702
Change in net position 3,322,807
NET POSITION AT JULY 1 14,110,974
NET POSITION AT JUNE 30 $ 17,433,781
The Notes to Financial Statements are 22

an integral part of this statement.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial staiements of the City of Sulfolk, Virginia (the “City”) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Significant
accounting policies of the City are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

Primary Government — The City was formed on January 1, 1974, by the merger of the former Cities of
Suffolk and Nansemond. The City of Nansemond was previously formed by the merger of the County
of Nansemond and the Towns of Whaleyville and Holland. The City is a political subdivision of the
Commonwealth ol Virginia operating under the council-manager form of government. The elecled
seven-member City Council, vested with the legislative powers, appoints the City Manager, who is the
executive and administrative head of the City’s government,

The City provides a full range of services to include the following: public safety (police and fire),
education, community development (planning and zoning), water treatment and distribulion, sewage
collection, refuse collection, maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure, stormwater
management, recreational activities including a golf course, cultural events, social services, and
library, among other services.

Discretely Presented Compenent Units — Discretely presented component units are entities that are
legally separate from the City, but for which the City is financially accountable, or whose relationship
with the City is such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be incomplete. They
are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements 1o emphasize they are
legally separate from the City.

City of Suffolk Public Schools

The City of Sulfolk Public Schools (the “School Board™) is responsible for elementary and
secondary education within the City. Management of the School Board is composed of seven
members popularly elected to a four-year term. The School Board is fiscally dependent upon
the City because the City Council approves the annual budget of the School Board, levies the
necessary laxes to finance operations and approves the borrowing of money and issuance of
debt. The School Board does not issue separate (inancial statements, as such, they have been
included in these statements.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
Discretely Presented Component Uniis (Continued)

The School Board has onc discreiely presented component unit, the Pruden Center for
Industry and Technology (the “Center”). The Center is a vocational and technical center used
by both the City Schools and the Isle of Wight County Schools to provide classes to high
school students and adults in various occupational trades. The Center is dependent upon the
School Board lor a majority of its funding. The Cenlter is shown as a discretely presented
component unit as it is legally separated from the School Board. Separate audited financial
statements may be obtained from the Pruden Center by contacting the Pruden Center for
Industry and Technology, 4196 Pruden Blvd., Suffolk, Virginia 23434,

Economic Development Authority of the City of Suflolk

The Economic Development Authority of the City of Suflolk (the “EDA") was eslablished
under the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act - Code of Virginia. A separale
board appointed by the City Council governs the EDA. The EDA is authorized to acquire,
own, lease, and dispose of properties, and to conduct related activities to promote industry
and develop trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial, governmenital, and commercial
enterprises to locate or to remain in the City. The City makes significant contributions to the
EDA relating to the property the EDA develops and markets. Separate audited financial
statlements may be obtained from the EDA by contacling the EDA's Deputy
Secretary/Treasurer, at P.C. Box 1858, Suffolk, Virginia 23439,

The following entities are excluded from the accompanying financial statements.

Joinlly poverned organizations:

Western Tidewater Water Authority

The Western Tidewater Waler Authority (the “Water Authority”) was created March 18,
1998, by the City Council and the Board ol Supervisors of the County of Isle of Wight,
Virginia (the “County”) pursuant to the Virginia Water and Sewer Authoritics Act, Chapter
51, Tide 15.2, Code of Virginia. The members of the Water Authority Board representing
both the City and the County have equal voting interests. The Water Authority was formed
for the purpose of acquiring, financing, constructing, leasing, operating, and maintaining
facilities for the production, impoundment, treatment, and transmission of potable and non-
potable walter. The City is not obligaled to pay the principle or inlerest on notes or any other
liabilities of the Authority and has no financial interest in the Authority. Separate audited
financial statements can be obtained by contacting the City Finance Director at the City of
Suffolk at 441 Market Street, Suffolk, Virginia 23434,
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)
Jointly Governed Orpanization: (Continued)

Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority

The Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority (the “Jail Authority™) was created as a
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia jointly through an agreement dated
November 1, 1989, among the Cities of Suffolk (59.3%) and Franklin (6.8%}), and the County
of Isle of Wight (33.9%) (the member jurisdictions) under the Jail Authority Act, Code of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. The percentages represent the respective member jurisdictions’
share of the costs to run the jail. The Jail Authority has the responsibility to finance the
acquisition, construction, equipping, and maintenance of a regional jail facility to operate for
the benefit of the member jurisdictions.

Historically, notes issued by the Jail Authority are limited obligations payable solely from
revenues received from the member jurisdictions. The City has not been obligated to pay the
principal or interest on the notes or any other liability of the Jail Authority and has no
financial inlerest in the Authority beyond its initial contribution. However, during 2011, the
member jurisdictions pledged o pay ils pro rata share of any debt service on the issuance of
the Authority’s 2011 bonds. Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the
Superintendent of Jail Authority at 2402 Godwin Blvd., Sulfolk, Virginia 23434,

Southeastern Public Service Authority of Virginia

The Southeastern Public Service Authority of Virginia (the “PSA") is a special purpose
government entity engaged in business-type aclivities with no component units and was
created for solid waste disposal. The members of the PSA are the Cities of Chesapeake,
Franklin, Norfolk, Portsmouth, Suffolk, and Virginia Beach and the Counties of Isle of Wight
and Southampton. Each member jurisdiction has agreed 1o deliver; or cause to be delivered,
95% of all disposable solid waste generated within, collected by or otherwisc under the
control of the contracting community.

Upon executing a dcbt retirement plan, the Virginia Resources Authority (the “VRA™)
required the eight member jurisdictions to guarantec, by general obligation, repayment of the
remaining VRA bonds outstanding. The member jurisdiction guarantees percentages were
calculated based on a three year average of proportional municipal tonnages. The total debt
outstanding as of June 30, 2013 to the VRA was $30,335,000 and Suffolk’s guaraniee
percentage was 12.87%, which totaled $3,904,115.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Related Organizalion:

Suffolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority

The Suffolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority (the “SRHA™) administers public
housing and redevelopment activities in the City. It applies, receives, and invests its own
funds and formulates and approves its own budget. City Council is responsible for appointing
members of the Board of SRHA, but the City’s accountability does nol extend beyond
making such appointments. SRHA does not have a significant operational or financial
relationship with the City. Separaie financial statements can be obtained by contacting the
SRHA Executive Director at 530 E. Pinner Street, Suffolk, Virginia 23434.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities that report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Primary Government and
its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental activities, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the Primary Government is reporied
scparalely from certain legally separate component units for which the Primary Government is
financially accountable,

The Statement of Net Position offers information on the assets and deferred outflows of resources, if
any, and liabilitics and deferred inflows of resources, if any with the difference between the two
reported as nel position.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges 1o customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given funclion or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other ilems not properly associaled with
program revenues are reporied instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial stalements. Major
individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the financial
statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements, with the exception of agency fund financial statements, which have no measurement
focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and the expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing related cash flows. Property laxes are recognized as revenue when the tax is
levied.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Governmental Fund Types:

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measureable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period,
For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 45 days of the
end of the current period.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible o accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when
billed, net of allowances for uncollectable amounts. Property taxes not collected within 45 days after
year-end are reflected as unearned revenues. Sales and utility taxes, which are collected by the
Commonwealth or utilities and subsequently remitted to the City, are recognized as revenues and
receivable upon collection, which is genecrally one or two months preceding receipt by the City.
Licenses, permits, fines, and rents are recorded revenues when reccived. Intergovernmental revenues,
consisting primarily of Federal, state, and other grants for the purpose of funding specific
expenditures, are recognized when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other
eligibility requirements have been mel. Revenues from general-purpose grants are recognized in the
period to which the grant applies. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when the City receives cash.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this rule include: (1) accumulated unpaid vacation
leave, sick leave, and other employee amounts (e.g., other postemployment benefits), which are
recognized when paid, and (2} principle and interest payments on general long-term debt, both of
which are recognized when due.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
linancial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's proprietary funds
and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenites include charges to customers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather
than as program revenucs. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes and contributions not restricted
1o specific programs and other revenues not meeting the definition of programs revenues.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The City presents the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is primary operating fund of the City, which accounts for all
financial resources not accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projecis Fund — The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, except for those financed by
proprictary funds or for assets held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

Road Maintenance Fund - accounts for revenue and expenditures related to maintaining roads city
wide. Revenues are derived from the staie and sale of service to other funds.

The City presents the following non-major governmental {funds:

Special Revenue Funds — account for proceeds of specilic revenue sources restricted or committed to
expenditure for a specific purpose other than debt service or capital projects. These funds consist of
the Suffolk Taxing District, Downtown Business Overlay District, Consolidated Grants, Law Library,
Route 17 Taxing District, Mosquito Taxing District, Transit, Cemetery, and the Aviation.

Proprietary Fund Types:

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enlerprises. The proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting
where the measurement focus is upon determination of net income. Proprietary funds consist of
enlerprise and internal service funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expense from non-operating ilems. Operaling
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the proprictary funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the utility fund, stormwater utility fund, refuse fund and internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expense not meeling the operating definition are reported as non-operaling revenues and
expenses.

28



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The City presents the following major enterprise fund:

Utility Fund - accounts for the provision of waler and sewer services. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounled for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration,
operation, maintenance, billing, collections, financing and related debt service, and capital assets.

The City presents the following non-major enterprise funds;

Stormwater Utility Fund — accountis for the maintenance and improvements to the City’s stormwater
infrastructure. All activities necessary lo provide such services are funded by charges to cilizens and
are accounted for in this fund.

Refuse Fund - accounts {or the provision of refuse and waste management services. All activities
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to,
administration, operation, billing, and collections.

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department Lo
other departments or agencics of the City on a cost-reimbursecment basis. The Internal Service Funds
are included in governmental aclivities for government-wide reporting purposes.

The City has the lollowing internal service funds:

Information_Technology Fund — accounts for technology infrastructure and allocated costs to the
various departments or agencies using the service.

Fleet Management Fund - accounts for, on a cost-reimbursement basis, the financing of vehicles and
related maintenance, repairs and fuel costs and allocates those costs lo the various departments or
agencies using the equipment.

Risk Management Fund - accounts for the funding and payment of auto, personal liability, general
liability, health insurance, and workers’ compensation claims against the City exclusive of the School
Board employees. Charges to other funds are based on estimated claims for the year.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Fiduciary Funds accounts for asserts held by the City as an agent for individuals, privale organization,
and other governments. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements.

The City and School Board each have the following fiduciary fund:

OPEB Trust Fund — accounts for activities related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB). This
fund accumulates resources for health insurance for retired employees.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Agency Funds — custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of the
results of operations. In addition to the City’s agency funds listed below, the Suffolk Public School
Combined School Activity Funds are also agency lunds.

Special Welfare Fund — accounts for receipt of wellare checks and foster children support checks from
the state and payments made on behalfl of individuals.

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund — accounts for monies collected by the City on behall of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

Western Tidewater Water Authority — accounts for monies held by the City as an agent [lor privale
organization.

. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

The provisions of the Code of Virginia shall control the preparation, consideration, adoption, and
execution of the budget of the City. The City Charter requires the budget to be balanced with planned
cxpenditures equal to revenue estimates. The City will prepare and annually update a long range (5
year) financial forecast model utilizing trend indicators and projections of annual operating revenues,
expenditures, capital improvements, and rclated debt service and operating costs as well as fund
balance levels. The City Manager, through the Budget and Finance Department, will exercise
appropriate fiscal management as necessary to live within the limits of the adopted budget.

Budgeting Information

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing annual budgel.

Al least 60 days prior to June 30, the City Manager submits to City Council a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

e The budget is formulated from estimates of revenues and expecled expenditures from each
department. The School Board is treated as a single expenditure line item.

o The City Manager submits the proposed budget to City Council and recommends an
appropriation ordinance and an ordinance levying the tax rates for the ensuing year.

e City Council then holds public hearings on the proposed budgel. Natice of such public
hearing must appear in a local newspaper not less than seven days prior to the hearing.

e The budget must be approved by a majority vote of City Council and legally adopted before
July 1. If City Council does not adopt the proposed budget before July 1, the budget as
submitted is autornatically adopted.

¢ Additional appropriations may be made by City Council only il there is an unencumbered
fund balance or additional funding becomes available.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued)

Budgeting Information (Continued)

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device. Annual operating budgets
are adopted by ordinance passed by City Council for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the
Utility Fund, Stormwater Fund, Refuse Fund, the Internal Service Funds, and the following Special
Revenue Funds: Aviation, Route 17 Tax District, Downtown Business Overlay District, Road
Maintenance, Transit and Law Library. Annual operating budgets are also adopted for the School
Operating, School Food Service, and School Grants funds.

Budgets for proprictary fund types arc prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The General,
Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds’ budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis.

Beginning fund balances for budgetary basis presentation purposes are adjusted for the carry-forward
or prior year encumbrances. According to City Code, unexpended and unencumbered appropriations
lapse at June 30 of each year. Appropriations that are encumbered or assigned by City Council at June
30 are carried forward into the following year’s appropriations to allow for liquidation of the
encumbrances or to complete a project.

Individual grants and projects included in the Consolidated Grants Fund and Capital Projects Fund are
budgeted separate from the operating budget. These appropriations do not parallel the City's fiscal
year and the accounting, encumbering, and controlling of the funds is based upon the length of cach
individual grant or project, which may be more than one year.

Financial Policies

The City's Finance Committee (the *Committee”) is empowered by City Council to implement and
establish various financial policies. The Committee meets on a monthly basis o manage and review
financial activities and to insure compliance with the established policies. Members of the Commitlee
include those individuals stipulated by ordinance adopted by City Council.

It is the City’s policy to fund current expenditures with current revenues and the City’s mission is to
strive to maintain a diversified and stable revenue stream to protect from problematic fluctuations in
any single revenue source and provide stability to ongoing services. The City’s unassigned General
Fund balance will be maintained to provide the City with sufficient working capital and a margin of
safety to address local and regional emergencies without borrowing.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand, money markel funds, certificales of deposit, and
investments with maturities of three months or less.

Investments
Investments are reported at fair value. Interest income on investments is allocated to the appropriate

funds based upon the average monthly cash balance of cach fund. Interest income is accrued as
carned.

Receivables

Reccivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectable amounts calculated by management
using historical collection data, specific account analysis, and management’s judgment.

Inventories and Prepaid liems

Inventories of materials and supplies and luel are recorded at cost. The cost of inventory is recorded as
an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed (consumption method) on a first
in, first out basis. Inventories held by the Economic Development Authority consist of land and
improvements held for sale and are valued at the lower of the cost or market.

Certain payments to vendors reflect coslts applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Asscts

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the governmental funds as assels in the proprictary
funds and the government-wide financial statements to the extent the City's capitalizations threshold
is met.

Buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure capital outlays are recorded as
capital assets and depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis in both the proprietary
fund’s and the government-wide statements. To the extent that the construction period has not closed,
interest expense is capitalized on proprietary fund type assets. The amount of inlerest expense
capilalized is offset by interest income eamed on invested proceeds. Interest capitalized during fiscal
year 2013 totaled $3,990,386.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLX, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continuved)

L

Capital Assets (Continued)

The City’s capitalization policy threshold is $5,000. All capital assels are valued at historical costs or
estimated historical cost if actual cost was not available. Donated assets are valued at their estimated
fair market value on the date donated. Assets acquired under capital leases are capitalized at the net
present value of all lease payments, and related amortization expense is included with depreciation
expense.

The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 15-75 years
Infrastructure 5-50 years
Machinery and cquipment 3-50 years
Intangibles 5-10 years

Maintenance, repairs, and minor equipment less than $5,000 are expended/expensed when incurred.
Costs that materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement
of land, buildings, or equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are
climinated from the respective accounts and any resuiting gain or loss is recorded.

Unavailable/Unearned Revenue

Unavailable revenue in the governmental funds consists of monies that arc measurable but not
available for use during the current period. Property taxes receivable at June 30 but not collected
within 45 days after that date are reporied as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds’ financial
statements. Unearned revenues consist of amounts prepaid and not yet earned, such as property taxes
collected prior to their due date. Uncamed revenue in the government-wide staiements also consists of
lease payments credited for future years relating to certificd capital improvements at the golf course.

Compensated Absences

City and School Board employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts based on
years of service. Employees may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation and sick
pay earmned and, upon retirement, lermination, or death, may be compensated for certain amounts at
specific rates. The cost of accumulated vacation and sick pay expected to be paid from fulure
expendable resources is accounted for as a liability in the government-wide statements and proprictary
fund statements.

For governmental fund types, the amount of accumulated unpaid vacation lcave, which is only
recorded as a liability of the respective fund only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee retirement or resignation. For proprietary funds, the cost of vacation and sick leave is
recorded as a liability when camed.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

L. Long-Term Liabilities

In the governmenlt-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations arc reported as liabilities in the appropriate Statement of Net Position. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance
costs, are expended when incurred. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debl issuances arc reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Balance

Fund Balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources:

Nonspendable fund balance -~ Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form or, for legal or contractual reasons, must be kept intact. This
classification includes inventories, prepaid amounts, assets held for sale, long-term
receivables.

Restricted fund balance - Restricied funds are either externally imposed (such as debt
covenanls, grantor, contributors or other governments) or are imposed by law
(constitutionally or enabling legislations).

Committed fund balance - The City’s committed funds include amounts that can only be used
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the highest level of
decision making authority — City Council. Formal Council action includes the annual
adoption of the City's Budget Ordinance, Council Resolutions appropriating funds and/or
resources, and Budget Amendments to carry forward appropriations that were unexpended at
fiscal year-end. The same action of council is required to un-commit.

Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained by the City's expressed intent to use
resources for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed are considered assigned. Intent can be stipulated by the governing body, another
body (such as the Finance Committee), or by the City Manager. With the exception of the
General Fund, this is the residual fund balance of the classification for all governmental funds
with positive balances.

Unassigned fund balance - this is the residual classification of the General Fund, Only the

General Fund can report a positive “unassigned fund balance”. Other governmental funds
might report a negative balance in this classification.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

M. Fund Balance (Continued)

General Fund Unassigned fund balance target — the ratio of Unassigned General Fund balance
as a percentage of budpeted governmental funds expenditures (net of the general fund
contribution to schools, transfer to other governmental funds, and capital projects fund
expenditures} plus budgeted expenditures in the School operation and food service funds
indicates the ability of the City to cope with unexpecled financial problems or emergencies.
The larger the Unassigned General Fund balance, the greater the City’s ability to cope with
financial emergencies and fluciuations in revenue cycles. The City has established a target
rate of 12% at the close of each fiscal year as computed on the upcoming budget year.

Once the Unassigned General Fund balance target is achieved, it is intended to be maintained
for the npcoming fiscal year from prior year surpluses and budgeted additions, as available
belore any other needs are addressed. in the event Unassigned Fund Balance is required to be
drawn below the 12% target rale due to an emergency (such as a natural disaster) or due to
severe economic circumstances, the City will develop a plan to restore the unassigned fund
balance over the ensuing two Lo three ycars.

The City considers restricted fund balance to be spent when expenditures arc incurred for
purposes for which restricted and any other fund balance classification is available unless
prohibited by legal documents or contracts. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the City considers
committed fund balance to be spent first, then assigned fund balance, and lastly unassigned
fund balance.

The School Board currently does not have a policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or other resources when an expenditure is incurred.

N. Net Position

Net position in the government-wide and proprietary financial stalements represents the difference
between assets and deferred outflows of resources, if any, and liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, il any, and is classified as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.
Net investment in capital assels consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Reslricted net position is reported when there are assets and deferred
outflows, il any, net of related liabilities and deferred inflows, if any, that have limitations
imposed on their use either through enabling legislation adopted by the City or through cxternal
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.
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Note 1.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

O. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the Uniled Siates of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these
cslimates.

. Component Unit-School Board Capital Asset and Debt Presentation

By law, the School Board does not have taxing authority and, thercfore, it cannot incur debt through
general obligation bonds to fund the acquisition, construction, or improvement of its capital assets.
That responsibility lies with the Cily to issue the debl on behalf of the School Board. However, the
Code of Virginia requires the School Board to hold title to the capital assets (buildings and equipment)
due to their responsibility for maintaining the assets.

In the Statement of Net Position, this scenario presents a dilemma for the City. Debt issued on behalf
of the School Board is reported as a liability of the Primary Government, thereby reducing the net
position of the City. The corresponding capital assets arc reported as assets of the component unit —
School Board (litle holder), thereby increasing its net position.

The Virginia General Assembly amended the Code of Virginia to allow tenancy in common with the
School Board whenever the locality incurs a financial obligation which is payable over more than one
fiscal year for any school property. The tenancy in common lerminates when the associated debt has
been paid in full. For financial reporting purposes, the legislation permits the City (o report the portion
of the school property related to any outstanding financial obligation, thus eliminating a potential
deficit from financing capital assets with debt.

. Change in Accounting Principle

Effective July 1, 2012, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
(Statement No. 63). This implementation required the City to present a Statement of Net Position,
replacing previously presented Statement of Net Assels, in the City’s basic financial statements, The
City's implementation also required the Statement of Net Position to present deferred outflows and
inflows of resources in separate scctions following total assets and total liabilities sections,
respectively. In practice, Statement No. 63 only impacls activities related to derivative instruments or
service concession arrangements. In the case of the City, the implementation of this standard was
isolated 1o the presentation of the Statement of Net Position.
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Note 2.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Deposits and Investments

Deposits

Deposits with banks are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized
in accordance with the Virginia Sccurity for Public Deposits Act (the *Act”) Section 2.2-4400 ct. seq. of
the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the
amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board.
Financial institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that
choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits.
Accordingly, all deposits are considered fully collateralized.

Investments

The City’s investmenis are subject to credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk as
described below. The City’s investments are not subject to custodial risk or foreign currency risk.

Credit Risk

Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States or agencics thereof, obligations of
the Commonwealth of Virginia or political subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development
Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and certain corporate noles, bankers acceptances, repurchase
agreements, the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), and the Statc Non-Arbitrage
Program (SNAP). The City’s policy cmphasizes the usc of securitics of high credit quality and
marketability, and follows statute, but does not specify minimum credit ratings.

Interest Rate Risk

The City Treasurer’s policy states that the investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of
return, taking into account investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. The portfolio shall be structured
so that securities mature concurrent with estimate cash needs and remain sufficiently liquid to meet
anticipated operating requirements. Investment of current operating funds shall have maturities of no
longer than 24 months.

Interest rate risk does not apply to the SNAP pooled investments.

External Investment Pool

The SNAP is an open-cnd management investment company registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). The fair value of the posilions in the SNAP is the same as the value of the pool
shares.

Concentration of Credit Risk
100% of the City’s investments at June 30 were with SNAP. These investments were not considered by

management to represent a risk to the City.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 2. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Restricted Cash

The City has restricted cash as follows:

Governmental Business-type Primary
Activities Activities Government
Unspent debt proceeds 3 34429505 § 63008514 $ 97438019
Debt service 392219 - 392219
Cemetery 1,161,567 - 1,161,567
Bridge repair 2,669,183 - 2,669,183
Escrow/bond/customer deposits 1,232,920 32,827 1,265,747
Other extemal purposes 2,261,574 2,079,370 4,340,944
Total $ 42146968 $ 65,120,711 § 107,267,679

Component Units
Economic
Primary Development
Government School Board Authority
Deposits and Investments:

SNAP $ 96910587 % - $ -

Lease proceeds 527432 S =
Deposits 120,149,737 22911,761 4,004,834
$ 217587756 % 22911761 $ 4004834

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 110320077 $ 22900798 % 2,652,128
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 107,267.679 10,963 1,352,706
$ 217587756 % 22911,761 § 4,004,834
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
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June 30, 2013
Note 3. Receivables
Receivables are as follows:
Govemmental Funds
Internal Service Funds
Non-major
Capital Road Governmental Fleet Risk
General Projects Maintenance Funds Management Management Total
Taxes $5280,008 S - 3 - $ 14471 5 - 3 - § 5294479
Accounts 7,758,785 44,863 21,318 261,545 154,983 62399 8,303,893
Subtotal 13,038,793 44863 21318 276,016 154,983 62,399 13,598,372
Less Allowance {3.956.638) - - (4.789) - - (3.961.427)
Receivables,net 39,082,155 § 44863 § 21318 & 271227 S 134983 S 62399 § 9636945
Business-iype Activities
Component
Unit - School
Utilities Refuse Stormwater Total Board

Accounts 7.215,785 418,679 254,395 7,888,859 219418
Less Allowance (372,514} (134,949) (64401) (571,864} -
Receivables, net  $6,843271 § 283730 § 189994 § 7316995 § 219418

Allowances for Uncollectible Accounts

The City calculates its allowances for uncollectible receivables using historical collection data and specific
account analysis. The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Position arc presented net of the
following allowances for doubtful accounts:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
General Fund - Taxes receivable $ 2,153929 % -
General Fund - EMS receivable 1,802,709 -
Non-major Funds - Taxes receivable 4,789 -
Uility Fund - Accounts receivable - 372514
Non-major Proprictary Funds - Fees receivablke - 199,350
$ 3,961,427 §% 571,864
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 3. Receivables (Continued)

Properiy Taxes — Property taxes are levied as of January 1 for personal property for the current calendar
year and as of July 1 for real estate for the current year, based on the assessed value the related property as
of the date. The City’s legal right to collect property taxes altaches each year when the rates are approved
and the taxes are assessed. Real estale taxes are collectible twice a year, on June 5 and December 5.
Personal property taxes are due on December 5. Amounts not collected within 45 days after the end of the
fiscal year are reflected as unearned revenue in the General Fund. A lien is created on real property three
years from the original due date.

Nate 4, Due From Other Governments

Due from other governments in the fund statements are as follows:

Primary Government:

Non-major
Capital Governmental
General Projects Funds Total

Commonwealth of Virginia:
State sales tax $ 1645212 % - 3 - $ 1645212
Communication sales 1ax 584,506 - - 584,506
Shared expenses 251,353 - - 251,353
Social services reimbursement 497629 - - 497,629
VA Depaniment of Transportation - 17,175 - 17,175
Various grants 37,740 255,734 212,528 506,002
3016440 272909 212,528 3,501,877

Federal Government:

Social services reimbursement 441,154 - - 441,154
Various grants 20523 - 206,140 316,663
461,677 - 296,140 757817

Total due from other governments § 3478117 § 272909 §$ 508608 $§ 4,259,694
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June 30, 2013

Note 4. Due From Other Governments (Continued)

Component Unit — School Board:

School School School Food
Operating Grants Service Total

Commonwealth of Virginia;
State sakes tax $ 1166437 §$ - $ - $ 1,166437
Various grants 131,800 210,809 - 342,609
1,298,237 210,809 - 1,509,046

Federal Government:

School food reimbursement - - 745,458 745458
Title 1 - 1,050,280 - 1,050,280
Title VI-B - 1,493,557 - 1,493,557
Education jobs grant - 255,832 - 255,832
Various grants 52512 82,734 - 135,246
52512 2,882,403 745458 3,680373

Total due from other governments  § 1,350,749 § 3093212 § 745458 §  5,189419

Note 5. Interfund Transactions:

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances are as follows:

Due To Due From

Governmental Funds:
General fund $ - $ 604,290
Non-major governmental funds:
Consolidated Grants fund 604,290 -

$ 604290 $ 604290

The primary purpose of the interfund balance between the Consolidated Grants Fund and the General Fund
is for cash advances to cover grant expenditures paid out where the revenue from other governments is
recorded as a receivable and will be reimbursed in subsequent fiscal year.

The interfund balance between the General Fund and the individual business-type activily funds is for the
effect of the elimination of interfund revenues and expenditures related to the internal service funds.
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June 30, 2013
Note 5. Interfund Transactions: (Continued)
Interfund Transfers:
Transfers to:
General Capital Non-major Intemnal
Fund Projects Debt Service Govermmental  Utility Service Total
Transfers from:
General Fund $ - S 3611000 $ 23890180 S 1004832 3 - S - S 28506012
Road Mamtenance 589407 100,000 - - - 1,587,000 2276407
Utility 540,001 - - - - - 540,001
Non-major:
Governmental 104,083 1,000,000 1,090.903 - 200,000 - 2394980
Enterprise 404,728 1,245,000 - - - 177,000 1,826,728
Internal Service 608,659 1,174,975 - - - - 1,783,634

$ 2246878 S 7130975 § 24981083 $§ 1004832 § 200000 $1,764000 § 37327768

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the funds that statuie or budgel requires to collect them to
the funds that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgeting
authorization.

Note 6. Transactions between Primary Government and Component Units

Significant Transactions of the City and Component Unit — School Board

Certain transactions between the Cily and School Board are explained here in detail to provide a more
informed understanding of the operational relationship of the two entitics and how such transactions are
presented in the financial statements.

I. The School Board can neither levy taxes nor incur debt under Virginia Law. Therefore, the City issues
debt *‘on behalf™ of the School Board. The debt obligation is recorded as a liability of the City. The
proceeds from the debt issued “on behalf” of the School Board are recorded in the City’s General
Fund. This fund then accounts for capital expenditures relating to major school construction projects.

2. Debt service payments for school related bonded debt are reported as part of the City in the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Fund.

3. If all economic resources associated with school activities were reported with the School Board, its
lotal expenditures would be as follows:

Expenditures of School Board - component Unit $ 145,122451
Repayment of School debt 10,912,328
$ 156,035,279

42



Note 6.

Note 7.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013

Transactions between Primary Government and Component Units (Continued)

Significant Transactions of the City and Component Unit — Economic Development Authority

The City provides personnel and office space to the EDA at no charge.

Capital Assets

The Following is a summary of governmental activities capital asset activity:

Capilal Asscls, non-depreciable
Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital Asscls, depreciable
Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements other than buikdings
Machinery and equipment
Imangibles

Total capital assets, depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buikdings
Infrastructure
Impravement other than buikdings
Machinery and equipment
Intangibles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciable, net

Governmental activitics, capital assets, net

Governmental Activities

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 28220928 S - 4528558 § 23692370
45,675,276 20951353 2878547 63,748,082
73,896,204 20951,353 7407,105 87440452
66,886,723 1,279,398 12,850 68,153,271
379807810 - 5,562,282 374,245,528
18514,157 6,400,701 - 24923 858
64,070,690 10,308,085 5965637 68413,138
- 1,253,202 - 1,253,292
529,279.380 19250476 11,540,769 536,989,087
18.407,166 1,357,580 12,850 19,751,896
67,009,831 14,207,774 - 81,217,605
10,753,669 634,731 1,347,109 10,041,291
41,648,286 4,363,188 3,191,635 42819839
- 588,008 - 588,098
137,818,952 21,151,371 4,551,594 154418,729
391,460428 (1,900.895) 6989175 382,570,358
$ 465356,632 § 19050458 $ 14,396,280 $ 470,010,810
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June 30, 2013

Note 7. Capital Assets (Continued)
The lollowing is a summary of depreciation expense charged to various functions;

Governmental Aclivities:

General government $ 4,604,588
Judicial administration 10441
Public safety 695,939
Public works 15,066,013
Parks, recreation, and cultural 774,390

$ 21,151.371

Government activities included depreciation of $3,756,399 for the Fleet Maintenance fund, $55,856 for the
Risk Management (und, and $348,114 for Information Technology fund.

The following is a summary of Business-type Activities capital assel activity:

Business-type Activities

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, non-depreciable
Land $ 5389766 3 165471 § - S 5555237
Construction in Progress 80,646,716 31,525,738 13,616,126 98,556,328
Tatal Capital assels, non-depreciable 86036482 31,691,209 13,616,126 104,111,565
Capital Assets, depreciable
Buildings 64,101,082 2,745,633 - 66,846,715
Improvements other than buildings 253319,790 6,716,309 - 260,036,099
Machinery and equipment 71927118 6,348,122 - 78,275,240
Intangibles - 43,606 - 43,606
Total capital assets, depreciable 389,347,990 15,853,670 - 405,201,660
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 13,380,342 1,556,403 - 14,936,745
Improvement other than buildings 60,842,529 5,040,261 - 65,882,790
Machinery and equipment 25,051,707 3,102,865 - 28,154,572
Intangibles - 3997 - 3997
Total accumulated depreciation 99,274,578 9,703,526 - 108,978,104
Total capital assets, depreciable, net 200073412 6,150,144 - 206,223,556

Business-type aclivities, capital assets, net § 376,109,894 $ 37.841,353 § 13,616,126 § 400,335,121
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Capital Assets (Continued)

June 30, 2013

The following is a summary of Component Unit — School Board capital assel activity:

Capital Assets, non-depreciabke
Land
Construction in progress

Total Capital assets, non-depreciable

Capital Assets, depreciable
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, depreciable

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvement other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciable, net

Component Unit - School Board, capital
assets, net

Component Unit -- School Board

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 6416521 § - $ 6416523

665,735 186,665 852400 -

7082258 186,665 852400 6416523
183,619,040 876,400 184,495,440
16,675,757 7200 g 16,682,957
35660222 1811249 423255 37048216
235,955,019 2,694,849 423255 238226613
13,870,565 4,793,228 g 78,663,193
9,075,462 522,143 s 9597605
22,360,035 2,576,653 418,745 24517943
105,306,062 7892024 418,745 112,779.341
130,648,057 (5,197,175) 4510 125447272

$ 137,731,215 §

(5,010,510) $

856,910 § 131,863,795
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June 30, 2013

Unavailable and Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities in the current period. Government funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet eamned. At year end,
the various components of unavailable revenue and unearned revenue in the governmental funds were as
follows:

Unavailable Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid taxes and other amounts -- unearmed $ 753554 § 753554
Developer deposits -- unearned (General) 104,308 104,308
Developer deposits -- unearned (Road Maintenance) 727,590 727.590
Hanger deposits -- unearned (A viation) 13,486 13,486
Grant receipts -- unearned 693,799 693,799
Taxes receivable, net -- unavailable 2,443,085 -
EMS receivable, net -- unavailable 1,950,330 -
Golf-course lease revenue -- unearned (Note 10) - 2,013,288

Total unavailable/unearned revenue -- governmental funds $ 6,686,152 $ 4,306,025

Unearned revenue in the utility fund represents payments that will be recognized as the City provides
services lo the Western Tidewater Water Authority.
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Note 9. Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities:

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Reductions  Ending Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:

General obligation deht $ 205496330 § 21410000 § 23964375 § 202941955 $ 15786016
Add bond premiums and other credits 9,071,141 3322502 1,098,946 11,294,697 -
Less deferred costs (2,640,780) (618,629) (22753) (3,031.879) -

Literary fund loans 4,250,000 - 4,250,000 - -

216,176,691 24113873 20,085,787 210,204,771 15,786,016

Section 108 loan 2,880,000 - 193,000 2,687,000 193,000

Capital Lease obligations 4.390,193 3050853 2,052,187 5,388,859 1,785,172

223446884 27,164,726 31330974 219,280,636 17,764,188

Claims payable 3751719 11,972,633 12,497,666 3232746 1,694,423

Compensated absences 4,298 567 932327 419,748 4.811,146 347229

Landfill hability 2,094,130 - 318521 1,775,609 -

Governmental activities, long-term

liabilities $ 233,597,360

$ 40,069,686  $44,566,909

$ 229,100,137 $19,805,840

Business-type activities:

Bonds Payable $ 265463670 $ 39200000 $ 11130625 $§ 293533045 $ 2463984
Add bond premiums and other credits 5,992,058 4,240,087 374314 9,857,831 -

271455728 43,440,087 11504,939 303390876 2463984

Capital lease obligations 2,718,563 - 381,288 2337275 356,852

274,174291 43440087 11,886,227 305,728,151 2,820,836

Compensated absences 508,379 77,191 10,695 574875 31,077

Business-type activities, long-term

liabilities $ 274,682,670

$43,517,278 $11,896,922

$ 306,303,026 § 2851913

47



Note 9.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Details of long-term indebtedness are as follows:

Bonds Payabl:
General Obligation Bonds:

Public Improvement Series 2003

2003 Refunding Bonds

2003 VRA Refunding Bonds

Public Improvement Series 2004

Public Improvement Series 2003

2005 Refunding Bonds

2007 Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2007B Public Improvement Bonds

2008 Public Improvement Bonds

2009 Series (Taxable - Build
America Bonds

2010A Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

201t Public Improvement

2011 Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

2011 VPSA Local School Bond

2012 Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds

Total general obligation bonds
Other Notes:
Section 108 Loan Payable

Total bonds payable

48

Final  Interest  Authorized Governmental Business-type

Issue Date Maturity  Rate and Issued Activities Activities
07/101/03  0801/23 2.50-6.00 17515000 § 2095000 $ -
071603 0801716 2.50-6.00 21,380,000 627493 112,507
08/07/03  10/01116  2.00-5.00 3,295,000 - 1,110,000
0728104 0630625 2.50-6.00 18,160,000 1.910,000 -
W1i705 1201125 4.00-5.00 11,710,000 7,605,000 -
HAT05 120119 4.00-5.00 10,005,000 6,602311 17,689
O¥11/07 0201135  4.004.50 88,245,000 64,979,028 259712
120107 12001727 4.00-5.00 24,475,000 18,350,000 -
102808 02101729 4.00-5.00 16,600,000 7.470,000 -
111009 0201/40 3,87 27,000,000 - 26,395,000
0429/10 080132 338 34,155,000 32,340,000 -
07011 0201727 2.00-5.00 £4,510,000 22430000 01,245,000
g7iown 0201727 2.00-5.00 30,065,000 10,018,123 16931,877
VIS 0630831 497 7,500,000 7,500,000 -
082212 06001742 2.00-5.00 60,610,000 21,015,000 39,100,000
202,941,955 144938,045

09/14/06 080126 4.96-5.77 3,845,000 2,687,000 -
$ 205628955 § 144938045
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
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June 30, 2013

Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Details of long-lerm indebtedness are as follows: {Continued)

Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities
Capital Lease Obligations:
$4.833,129 issued for the purchase of generators; payable in monthly installments through June 2022 8 L5293 %3 23312H
$5412,300 issved November 10, 2008 for the purchase of 28 public safety vehicles; payable in quarterly
installments of $209,170 through November 2013; interest a1 3.9% 580,701
$1,324.956 issued November 23, 2010 for the purchase of a lighting projecis and various vehicles and
equipment; payabk: in quarterly installments of $70,284 through November 23, 2015; interest at 2.28% 681,300
$606,000 issued November §8, 2011 for the purchase of varicus vehicles and equipment; payable in quarterly
mstaltments of $31,957 through November 18, 2016; interest at 2.05% 430.660
$2,661,000 issued September 21, 2012 for the purchase of various vehicks and equipment; payable in quarterly
instaliments of $39,678 through August 1, 2017; interest a1 1.87% 2271501
$300,000 issued September 21, 2012 for the purchase of various sofiware; payable in quarterly installments of
$15,747 through August 1, 2007, interest at 1.87% 256,764 -
Total capial kease obligations $ 538889 § 233104
Issue Final  Interest  Authorized  Business-type
Date  Maturity Rate and Issued Activities
Bonds Payable:
Pledged Revenue Bonds Virginia Resources Authority (VRA):
2004B Series Water and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA - 11/17/04 1001726 2.00-600 8§ 11,695000 $ 8,880,000
2005B Series Waler and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA 1207405 10/01/35  4.77-5.10 14,050,000 10,910,000
2006B VRA Relunding Bonds 08/09/06 (4701130 4.10-4.87 12,750,000 11,255,000
2006C Scries Water and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA  11/26/06  [0/01/36  4.26-4.91 36,460,000 30,200,000
2007 Serics Water and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA 121307 10/01/37  3.40-5.10 39,795,000 34,460,000
2008 Series Walter and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA 1210/08 10701738 2.29-5.54 45,300,000 39,270,000
2009 Series Water and Sewer Revenue Bond - VRA 0a/17/09 1001725 1.13-4.86 10,200,000 8,700,000
2010 VRA Refunding Bonds 01610 00131 4.52 4,945,000 4,920,000
Total pledged revenue bonds $ 148,595,000
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June 30, 2013

Note 9. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Amortization requirements for governmental activities:

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt and related interest as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year
Ending _General Obligations Bonds _ Section 108 Loan Payable Capital Lease Obligations
_June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014 $ 157786016 $ B9I8487 § 193000 $ 140980 $ 1,785172 § 70,154

2015 15322462 8,295,954 193,000 131,214 1,203,449 44,987
2016 15,467,462 7,662,693 193,000 121,410 1,041,630 25461
2017 14,965,428 6,987,354 193,000 111,567 803,394 10,546
2018 15492475 6,262,771 193,000 101,521 273,366 723
2019-2023 60,058,112 22,528,900 965,000 350,358 281,848 -
2024-2028 47,075,000 11,050,219 757,000 86,506 - -
2029-2033 16,700,000 2,884,025 - - - -
2034-2035 2,075,000 141,075 - - - -

$202,941,955 $ 74731478 $ 2687000 % 1043556 $ 5388859 § 151871

Business-type Activities

Year
Ending _General Obligations Bonds Revenue Bonds Capital Lease Obligations
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2014 § 1008984 $ 6851584 % 1455000 § 7236610 $ 356853 % s

2015 1,507,538 6,814,422 1,505,000 7,180,902 349,889 -
2016 2,062,538 6,752910 2,160,000 7,104,463 342,733 -
2017 2,394,572 6,656,695 2,630,000 7,003,308 338,781 -
2018 4,052,525 6,564,834 4,960,000 6,840,743 329,975 -
2019-2023 25,956,388 29,903,864 28,410,000 30,485,265 619,043 -

2024-2028 28,855,000 23945719 34,925,000 22,873,291 - -
2029-2033 26,900,000 17,297,274 35,115,000 13,872,598 - -
2034-2038 30,435,000 10,468,862 34,540,000 4,959,641 - -
2039-2042 21,765,000 2,371,290 2,895,000 75,624 - -

5144938045 $117,627454 $148,595000 $107,632445 § 2337274 § -

The Governmental Aclivities Capital lease obligations are collateralized by equipment with a book value
of $5,388,859, which is net of accumulated depreciation of $2,350,527 at June 30, 2013.

The Business-type Activities Capital Lease obligations are collateralized by equipment with a book value
of $2,337,274, which is net of accumulated depreciation of $1,343,164 a1 June 30, 2013.
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Pledge-Revenue Bond Restrictions:

The City’s Utility fund has outstanding obligations with Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) for which
revenue has been pledged 1o secure the obligations. The net revenues of the Utility fund have been pledged
to meel the debt service requirecment of these bonds. The bonds have been issued (o linance the capital
improvements and construction of the water and sewer systems. The total amount remaining debt service
to be paid over the life of these VRA bonds is $256,227,445 through 2042.

Due to the master trust indenture, the revenue covenant has been met for the pledged-revenue bonds. Net
revenues are required to be no less than greater of (i) the sum of 1.5 times senior debt service and 1.0 times
subordinate debt service for the fiscal year (ii) net revenues are not less than 1.0 times the funding
requirements for transfers from the revenue fund to the bond fund, the parity debt service fund, the debt
service reserve [und, the subordinate debt service fund, the repair and replacement reserve fund, and the
rale stabilization fund. The debt coverage ratio for the year ended June 30, 2013 was 39.5%. Furthermore,
there has been no occurrence of any condition or event which constituies, or which, with notice or lapse of
time, or both, would constitute an event of default within the terms of the master trust indenture.

General Obligation Bonds and the Legal Debt Limit:

General Fund revenues are used to pay all general long-term kabilities. The City retains the liability for the
portion of general obligation bonds issued to fund capital projects of the School Board.

The General Fund has a contingent liability for repayment of the general obligation bonds outstanding in
the Enterprise Fund, from which repayment is anticipated, should the Enterprise Fund be unable to do so.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

The Commonwealth of Virginia imposes a legal limit of 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable real
property on the amount of general obligation borrowing which may be outstanding by the City. The City
has independently set a lower debt limit of 7%, further reduced by financial policy in 2010 to 4% of the
assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2013, the City's aggregate general obligation indebtedness is
approximately $532.6 million less than the Commonwealth’s limit and $268.5 million less than the City’s
[inancial policy.
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

School Board Long-Term Liabilities:

Following is a summary of changes in noncurrent liabilities of the School Board and its component unit
for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Beginning Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions  Ending Balance  One Year
Component Unit - School Board
Other postemployment benefils S 1,782919 § 2421957 § 1462100 S 2731716 8 -
Compensated Absences 2,021,649 82673 206,282 1,898,040 163,935

3 3804568 5 2504630 5 1673382 § 4635816 5 163935

Current Year Refunding of Debt

In August 2012, the City issued $19,875,000 in gencral obligation bonds with an average interest rate
ranging between 2%-5%. These bonds were issued to refund approximately $21,425,000 in outstanding
bonds including literary loans issued in 1999 and 2000, and partial refunding of bonds issued in 2003 and
2004. The net proceeds of the refunding were $22,897,177 (including $3,022,177 in bond premium and
$152,634 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs). The liability for the refunded bonds has been
replaced with the liability from new debt with the difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt totaling $1,089,884 and is being deferred and amortized over the life of
the defeased debi in proportion to the stated interest duc on the new debt. Approximately $17,175,000
remains outstanding at June 30, 2013 related to the partially defeased bonds describe below.

The City refunded these bonds in order to reduce the average interest rate paid on the bonds without
cxtending the final maturity. The impact of the refunding was to decrease the overall debt service on the
refunded obligations by $2,775,389. In addition, this resulted in an economic gain (the difference between
the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $2,450,916.

Prior Year Defeasances:

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide all fulure debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assels and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial
statements. At June 30, 2013, $135,210,000 of bonds outstanding were considered defeased.

Bonds Authorized and Unissued:

Bonded debt authorized by City Council in previous years but unissued as of June 30, 2013 totals
$61,175,739.
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Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Landfill Post closure Care Caosts:

The City closed its former landfill site in 1984 and completed initial closure measures in 1995. In
accordance with federal and state laws, the City placed a final cover on this site and was required to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions for a minimum of ten years after closure. In 2011,
the City reevaluated the estimate and determined that the moniloring periods could extend for another ten
years, through 2021.

The estimated liability is based on the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) accepting the
active remedy proposed by the City as discussed. Il the DEQ does not accept the active remedy, the actual
costs may change. Also, actual costs may be higher due to intlation, changes in technology, changes in
regulation, or other unforeseen circumstances. The cumulative amount of estimated post closure care
costs, and corrective action to date for this site, less cash paid for such costs to date, totals $1,775,609.
This amount is included in the long-lerm liabilities in the primary government.

The City uses the bond method test of demonstrating assurance for post closure care.
Leases
Lessor:

On October 27, 2009, the City entered into an operating leasc whereby the City leased the Sleepy Hole
Golf Course to a private operator. The lease was amended on May 1, 2010 and the term of the lease ends
April 30, 2030. The agreement requires annual lease payments to the City of $356,000. This amount is
reduced by certified annual capital costs made by the operator to enhance the integrity of the golf course
facility. For the year ended June 30, 2013, the operator did nol report any certified capital improvements.
The remaining amount of unearncd lease revenue, in the form of capital improvements exceeding the
annual lease payments at June 30, 2013, is $2,013,288.

L.essee:

The City also leases various equipment and facilitics through operating leases, which are subject to
appropriation annually. Rent expense for governmental and business-type activities was $723,530 and
$1,208,462 respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

2014 $ 987,170
2015 __ 303424
$ 1,290,594
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

The City contributes to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan adminisiered by the Virginia Retirement System (the “System”).

All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees are automatically covered by VRS upon
employment. Benefits vest after five years of service credit. Members ecarn one month of service credit for
each month they are employed and their employer is paying into the VRS. Members are eligible to
purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded
VRS service as credit in their plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees — Plan 1 and Plan 2:

e Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who were vested as of January 1, 2013 are covered under
Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members arc eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at
age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit.
They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 55 with at least five years of service credit or
age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.

¢ Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and Plan 1 members who were not vesied on
January 1, 2013 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members arc cligible for an
unreduced benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of
service credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced
benefit as early as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

o Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced benefit
beginning at age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 25 years of service
credit. These members include sherilfs, deputy sheriffs, and hazardous duty employees of political
subdivistons that have elected to provide enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service. They may
retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 50 with at least 5 years of service credit. All other
provisions of the member’s plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of
the member’s average final compensation multiplied by the member’s total service credit. Under Plan 1,
average [inal compensation is the average of the member’s 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the member’s 60 consecutive
months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is [.70%.
The retirement multiplier for sheriff’s and regional jail superintendents is 1.85%. The retirement multiplier
for eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees other than sheriffs and jail superintendents is
1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer. The multiplier for Plan 2 members was reduced to 1.65%
cffective January 1, 2013 unless they are hazardous duty employecs and their employer has elected the
enhanced retirement multiplier. At retirement members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a
Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment (PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction lactor
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continuved)

Plan Description (Continued)

is applied 1o the Basic Benefit amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance
Pension Option for those retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees arc eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second
calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.009%; under Plan 2, the COLA
cannot exceed 3.00%. During ycars of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VRS also
provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigned the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the plans administered by VRS. A copy of that
report may be obtained from the VRS website at http:/www.varetire.org/Pdf/publications/2012-Annual-
Report.pdf or obtained by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O, Box 2500, Richmond,
VA 23218-2500.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5% of
their compensation toward their retirement. All or part of the 5.00% may be assumed by the employer.
Beginning July 1, 2012 new employees were required (o pay the 5% member contribution. In addition, for
cxisting employees, employers were required to begin making the employee pay the 5% member
contribution. This could be phased in over a period of up to 5 years and the employer is required to
provide a salary increase equal to the amount of the increase in the employee-paid member contribution.
In addition, the City and School Board are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specific by the Code of Virginia and approved by the
VRS Board of Trustees. The City’s and Board’s non-professional employee contribution rates for the
fiscal year ended 2013 were 18.56% and 13.9% of annual covered payroll, respectively.

The School Board’s contributions for professional employees were $11,648,391, $7,895,331, and
$8,407,146 to the teacher cost-sharing pool, which represented 15.66%, 13.44%, and 15.66% of current
covered payroll for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2013, the City’s annual pension cost of $10,197,688 was equal to the City’s required and
actual contributions.

For fiscal year 2013, the School Board’s annual pension cost for non-professional employees was
$938,800, which was equal to the School Board’s required and actual contributions.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage of
Fiscal Year Pension Cost APC Net Pension
Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
City:
June 30,2013 $ 10,197,688 100% §$ -
June 30,2012 % 8,526,249 100% $ -
June 30,2011 $ 8,407,146 100% % -
School Board:
Nonprofessional
June 30,2013 % 938,800 100% % -
June 30,2012 % 787,554 100% § -
June 30,2011 % 820,689 100% % -

The FY2013 required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation using
the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at June 30, 2011 includes (a) an investment
rate of return (net of administrative expenses) of 7.00%, (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.75%
1o 5.60% per year for gencral povernment employees, 3.75% to 6.2% per year for teachers, and 3.50% to
4.75% per year for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officer,
firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) a cost of living adjustment of 2.50% per year for Plan 1 employees and
2.25% for Plan 2 employees. Both the investment rate of return and the projected salary increases include
an inflation component of 2.50%. The acluarial value of the City's and the School Board's assels is equal
to the modified market value of assets. This method uses techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of the assels over a five year period. The City’s, and School Board's
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an
open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2011 for the Unfunded Actuarial Liability
(UAAL) was 30 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actoarial valuation date, the City’s plan was 71.03% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $225,029,519, and the actuarial value of assets was
$159,845,397, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $65,184,122. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $53,979,914 and ratio of the UAAL
lo covered payroll was 120.76%.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City School Board's plan was 79.66%
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $22,002,180, and the actuarial value of assets was
$17,526,158, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $4,476,022. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active empioyees covered by the plan) was §6,839,451 and ratio of UAAL to the
covered payroll was 65.44%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplemental information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiycar trend informalion about whether the actuarial valee of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for
benefits.

Other Postemployment Benefits Program

The City of Suffolk has established an irrevocable trust pursuant to Section 15.21544 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended for the purpose of accumulated and investing assets to fund Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB), to participate in the Virginia Pooled OPEB Trust Fund and has established a local
Finance Board to become a Participating Employer in the Trust Fund. The Trust Fund provides
administrative, custodial, and investment services to the Participating Employers in the Trust Fund. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 the City contributed $1,865,700 and the School Board contributed
$1,467,100 to the trust Fund. Expenses allocated to the Trust Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013 totaled $14,702 for the City and $8,214 for the School Board. The Trust Fund issues a separate
report, which can be obtained by requesting a copy from the plan administrator, Virginia Municipal
League (“VML”) at P.O. Box 12164, Richmond, Virginia 23241,

Plan Description

The City and School Board provide postemployment medical coverage for retired employees through a
single-employer defined benefit plan. The plan is established under the authority of City Council and the
School Board, which may also amend the plan as deemed appropriate.

Participants in the City’s and School Board’s OPEB plans must have attained 20 years and 10 years of
full-time consecutive service, respectively, and been enrolled in the group health insurance plan for the 24
months prior to their retirement date Lo be eligible and coverage ceases at age 65. Retirees pay 100% of
spousal premiums and surviving spouses are not allowed to the plan.

Funding Policy
The City and School Board establishes employer contribution rates for plan participants as part of the

budgetary process each year and determines how the plan will be funded each year and whether it will
partially fund or fully fund the plan. The City and School Board currently fund postemployments health
care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and as contributions to their respective Trust Funds.
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Other Postemployment Benefits Program (Continued)

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The annual cost of OPEB is the Annual Required Contribution (ARC). The City and School Board paid
$241,611 and $673,648 towards the estimated pay-as-you-go cost for OPEB benefits in fiscal year 2013,
in addition contributed $1,865,700 and $1,467,100 to the Trust Fund, respectively. They City and School
Board clected to pre-fund OPEB liabilities. The City and School Board are contributing the ARC an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with GAAP. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years, the thirty amortization period is
open.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued

The following lable shows the components of the City and School Boards’ annual OPEB cosl for the year,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the net OPEB obligation for the healthcare
benefits:

School

City Board
Annual Required contribution $ 2999000 $ 2439200
Intcrest on net OPEB obligation (74,279 133,719
Adjustment to annual required contribution 83,857 (150,962)
Annual OPEB cost 3,008,578 2421957
Contributions Made 3,250,647 1,467,100
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (242,069) 954,857
Net OPEB obligation (assct) -- beginning of year (990,385) 1,782,919
Net OPEB obligation (assct) -- end of year $ (1232454) § 2737776
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Note 12.  Other Postemployment Benefits Program (Continued)

The City and School Board’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual QPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the past three fiscal years are as follows.

Three-Year Trend Information

Percentage of
Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost (Asset)
Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
City:
June 30,2013 § 3,008,578 108.05% %  (1,232454)
June 30,2012 § 2,120,025 97.33% $ (990,385)
June 30,2011 §$ 2,985,694 11205% %  (1,046,897)
School Board:
Nonprofessional
June 30,2013 % 2,421,957 60.57% § 2,737,776
June 30,2012 § 2,315,635 81.34% § 1,782919
June 30,2011 § 2,229,232 71.41% & 1,350,927

Funding Status an Funding Progress
The Funding status of the plan as of July 1, 2012 for the City and July 1, 2013 for the School Board was as

follows:
City School
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) 28,698,600 14,172,900
Actuarial Value of Plan Assels 14,389 399 9,895,900
Unfunded Aciuarial Accrued Liability $ 14309201 $ 4,277,000
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assels/AAL) 50.14% 69.82%
Covered Payroll (Active Pian Mcmbers) 55,725,400 58,391,400
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 25.68% 1.32%
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Other Postmployment Benefits Program (Continued)

Funding Status an Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions aboul the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions aboul future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined
regarding the lunded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information following
the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as

understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided al the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consisient with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2013, actuarial valuations for the City and the School Board respectively,
the projected unit credit cost method, was used to determine liabilities. Under this method, the
postretirement health costs are assumed to be earned ratably from the date of hire to the participant’s full
cligibility age. The actuarial assumptions used a 7.5% for the City and 7.0% for the School Board discount
rate for a funded plan. Healthcare cost trend rates of 7.5% and 4.5% for the City and School Board. The
unfunded accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years using the level dollar amount method.

Commitments and Contingencies

Federally assisted grant programs:
The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. Although the City has been audited

in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, these programs remain subject to financial and
compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could lead to requests for
reimbursements to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior
experience, Cily management believes such disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

Construction Commitments:

The City has authorized expenditures for capital additions and construction of various governmental and
utility capital projects. At June 30, 2013, projects expected to be completed at various dates through 2014
had a total unexpended balance of $45,113,172 (governmental) and $28,447,188 (utility).

Lease Commitment:
The City has authorized expenditures for capital lease payments, which include monthly and annual
payments for repairs and maintenance costs. At June 30, 2013, lease payments and the associated repairs
and maintenance commitments had a total unexpended balance of $4,014,248.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Litigation:

There are various lawsuils pending against the City and School Board, two of which have a potential range
of loss up to $1,000,000 and $7,000,000 respectively. There are other claims outslanding against the City
and School Board as well that, in the opinion of management after consulting with legal counsel, will not
materially affect the City or School Board’s financial position.

Risk Management

The City and School Board are exposed to various risks of loss related to the following: torts; theft of
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injurics to cmployces; and natural disasters.
The City and School Board participate with other localities in a public entity risk pool, the Virginia
Municipal League, for their coverage of property damage. The City and School Board pay an annual
premium to the pools for ils general insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of the pools
provides that the pools will be self-sustaining through member premiums. The City and School Board
continue to carry commercial insurance for all other risks ol loss. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage {rom the prior year, Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

Self-Insurance — City:

The City is scif-insured for a portion of its health insurance risks up to $125,000 per occurrence. An
external insurance policy provides coverage over the specified amount up to $1,000,000 per individual for
life.

Claims payable reported in the Risk Management Fund at June 30, 2013 consists of all current seli-insured
claims payable including an estimate of incurred but not reportable claims amounting to $3,232,746. The
current portion is $1,694,423 for 2013. Claims payable for health insurance are based on current
enrollment and benelits and historical experience. Claims payable for workers’ compensation and other
contingent liabilities are based on insurance coverage and specific claims which have presented. Following
is a summary of changes in claims payable for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:

Beginning Claims and Claim Ending
Balance Reserves Payments Balance

Workers Compensation
2013 $ 2668370 $ 2348193 § 2974458 § 2,042,105

2012 1,391,487 1,840,974 564,091 2,668,370
Health Insurance

2013 1,089,409 9,624,440 9,523,208 1,190,641

2012 878,792 8,380,360 8,169,749 1,089,409
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Risk Management {Continued)

Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Coverage — School Board:

The School Board is self-insured for workers’ compensation benefits. Charges are made o the School
Operating, Grants, and Food Service Funds as approved by City Council in the annual operating budgets.
Any excess charges are reflected as nonspendable balance for workers” compensation claims in the School
Operating Fund. At June 30, $516,140 was held for purposes of funding future claims.

Claims arc paid by a third-party administrator acting in behalfl of the School Board under terms of a
contractual agreement. Administrative fees arc included within the provisions of that agreement. The plan
pays all claims up to $600,000 for each covered accident. Any claims exceeding $600,000 for each
covered accident are paid by specific stop-loss insurance provided by a third-party insurance company. As
of June 30, 2013, the workers’ compensation benefit obligation consisted of $239,068 in reported unpaid
claims and estimated incurred but no reported claims.

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, are as follows:

Beginning Claims and Claim Ending
Balance Reserves Payments Balance

Workers Compensation
2013 8 578730 § 192500 $ 532,162 $§ 239,068
2012 326,664 935,459 683,393 578,730

Health Insurance Self-Insurance Coverage — School Board:

Claims are paid by a third-party administrator acting on behalf of the School Board under terms of a
contractual agreement. The plan pays all claims up to $125,000 for cach participant. Any claims exceeding
$125,000 for cach participant are paid by specific stop-loss insurance provided by a third-party insurance
company. As of June 30, 2013, School Operating Fund prepaids of $95,000 were held for purposes of
funding the School Board’s future claims liabilities. As a result, $95,000 of the School Operating Fund
balance is reserved for payment of future claims liabilities.

Subsequent Events

The City issued $64,415,000 of authorized General Obligation and Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 on July
30, 2013 with a maturity date of December 1, 2042. These bonds were issued to finance various public
improvement and public utility projecis as well as refund certain general obligation and utility revenue
bonds previously issued by the City.
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Note 16. Fund Balances

Fund Balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent lo which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government [unds. The constraints placed on the gencral fund balance and other
povernmental funds balance are presented below:

Road Non-major
Capital Maintenance  Debt Service Governmental
General Fund Projects Fund Fund Fund Funds
Nonspendable:

Inventories $ 974 3 - § - S - $ -
Total Nenspendablke 9,794 - - - -
Restricted for:

Judicial Administration - - - - 208,040

Public Salety - - - - 32597

Public Works 565,969 - 2,669,183 - -

Parks, Recreation and Cullural - - - - 1,161,567

Capital Outlay - 9,889,915 - - -

Debt Service - - - 392,219 -
Taotal Restricted 565,969 9889915 2,669,183 392219 1402204
Committed to:

Public Works - - 8,830,070 - 2839333

Community Development 5,502,953 - - 5 g

Capital Outlay 4,406,577 504,104 - - -

De Service - - - 2,060,760 -
Total Committed 9,909,530 34,504,114 8,830,070 2,060,760 2,839,333
Assigned to:

General Government Administration 454,699 - - - =

Judicial Administration 9947 - - - -

Public Safety 425561 - - - -

Public Works 141,894 - 2864515 - -

Health and Welfare 405,261 - - 5 g

Parks, Recreation and Cultural 21815 - - - -

Community Development 180,974 - - - g
Total Assigned 1,646,157 - 2.864,515 - -
Unassigned 43,938,132 - - . (10,938)
Total Fund Balance $ 56,069,582 § 44,394,029 $ 14,363,768 $ 2,452,979 $ 4,230,599
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Note 17.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

New Accounting Standards
The GASB has issued the following statements, which are not yet cffective.

GASB Statement No. 65, frems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, cstablishes standards for
reclassification of certain items as deferred outflows and inflows of resources that were previously
reported as assels and liabilities. The standard limits the items that should be reported as deferred outflows
and inflows of resources to items specifically identified in authoritative pronouncements. Additionally, the
standard requires that debt issuance costs be recognized as an expense in the period incurred excepl any
portion related to prepaid insurance costs. Prospective application is required. The statement will be
effective for the year ending June 30, 2014

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Correction — 2012 — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and
No. 62, was issued lo resolve conflicting guidance that resulied from the issuance of two pronouncements.
The statement amends GASB Statement No. 10 by removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting
of an entity’s risk financing activitics to the general fund and the internal service fund type. The fund
classification should be determined based on the nature of the activity to be reported. The stalement also
amends GASB Statement No. 62 by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease
payments that vary from straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase
price) and the principal amount ol a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to
mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a normal servicing
fec rate. The statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2014,

GASB Statement No 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, replaces the requirements of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 50 as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trust or similar
arrangements meeting certain criteria. The statement enhances nole disclosures and RSI for both defined
benefit and defined contribution pension plans. The statement also requires the prescntation of new
information about annual money-weighted rates of return in the notes to the financial statements and in 10-
year RSI schedules. This statement will be effective for the year ending June 30, 2014.

GASB_Swatement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans replaces the

requirements of GASB Statements No. 27 and No. 50 as they relate to governments that provide pensions
through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria, The
stalement requires governments providing delined benefit pensions to recognize the long-term obligation
for pension benefits as a liability for the first time and to more comprehensively and comparably measure
the annual costs of pension benefits. The statement also enhances accountability and transparency through
revised and new note disclosures and required supplementary information, including disclosing descriptive
information about the types of benefits provided, how contributions te the pension plan are determined,
and assumptions and methods used to calculate the pension liability, This statement will be effective for
the year ending June 30, 2015.
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Note 17.

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

New Accounting Standards (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations,
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals
of government operations. This slatement also provides guidance for transfers of operations that do not
conslitute entire legally separate cntities and in which no significant consideration is exchanged.
Disclosures will be required to be made aboul government combinations and disposals of government
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluation the nature and financial effects of those
transactions. This statement is effective for the year ending June 30, 2014,

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees,
improves accounting and financial reporting by stale and local governments that extend and receive
nonexchange financial guarantees. The statement also provides additional guidance for intra-entity
nonexchange financial goarantees involving blended component units. The statement specifies the
information that is required to be disclosed by governments that extend nonexchange financial guarantees,
in addition 1o adding new disclosures for governments that receive nonexchange financial guarantees.
Except for disclosures related to cumulative amounts paid or received in relation to a financial guarantee,
the provisions of this statement are required to be applied retroactively. Disclosures related to cumulative
amounts paid or received in relation to a financial guarantee may be applied prospectively. This stalement
is effective for the year ending June 30, 2014.

Management has not yet evaluated the effects, if any, of adopting these standards.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 10

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDRGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

REVENUES

General property taxes:
Real estate
Personal properly
Public service corporations
Machinery and tools
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Penalties

Total general property taxes

Otker Local Taxes
Sales and use
Unility tax
Communicalion 1axes
Business and occupational licenses
Motor vehicle license
Bank stock
Recordalion
Tobacco
Lodging
Meals
Penalties (Meals Taxes)
Public facility taxes
Aulmussion

Total other local 1axes

Permits, fees, and licenses
Animal license
Permits and other licenses

Total permits, fees, and licenses
Fines and forfeilures

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money
Revenue from use of property

Toatal use of money and propenty

Charges lor services:
Court costs
Police and traffic control
Charges for other protection
Charges for parks and recreation
Charges for library
Charges for planning and community development
Charges for other services

Total charges for services

(Continued)

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30,2013
Varlance with
Final Budget -
Budgeied Amounis Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts [Negative)
5 83750000 83750000 % B2096459 S (1,653,541)
15,200,000 15,200,000 15,144,928 (35,072)
2,600,000 2,600,000 3,210,399 610,393
- - 1.581.180 1,581,180
12,000 12,000 11,914 (86)
1,100,000 1,100,000 996,889 (103,111
102,662,000 102,662,000 103,041,769 379,769
7,800,000 7,800,000 8,050,485 250,485
4,300,000 4,300,000 4,390,438 90,438
3,600,000 3,600,000 3,602,321 2321
7.300,000 7,300,000 6,277,297 (1,022,703)
1,900,000 1,900,000 2,247,870 347,870
500,000 500,000 486,092 (13,908)
900,000 900,000 1,165,979 265,979
1,300,000 1,300,000 1,313,533 13,533
1,100,000 1,100,000 1,071,900 (28,100}
7,200,000 7,200,000 7436836 236,836
- - 15,376 15,376
40,000 40,000 83,949 43,949
340,000 340,000 237,060 (102,940)
36,280,000 16,280,000 36,379,136 99,136
34,000 34,000 35,169 1,169
854,400 854400 1.027.549 173,149
B88.400 888,400 1,062,718 174,318
940,000 940,000 1,048,276 108,276
330,000 330,000 285,774 (44,226)
306,000 306,000 322433 16,433
636,000 636,000 608,207 (27,193)
323,787 323,787 300,259 (23,528)
23,900 23,900 42,121 18,221
70,000 70,000 71,850 2.850
§25,000 825,000 753653 71,347y
16,000 16,000 20,584 4584
35,000 35,000 29,933 (5,067)
2.361.000 1,361,000 3,683,004 1,322,094
3.654,687 3,654,687 4,902,494 1,247,807




EXHIBIT 10
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Aciual Positive
Orriginal Final Amounits {Nezative)
REVENUES (Confinued)
Miscellancous revenue
Mliscellancous 5 1,305000 § 1305000 S 1,225,114 § {79,886)
Total revenue from local sources 146,366,087 146,366,087 148,267,714 1,901,627
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:
Motor vehicle carrier tax - - 1092 1,992
Tax an deeds 600,000 600,000 711,107 111,107
Railroad rolling stock tax £10,000 110,000 131,260 21,260
House bill 59% funds 2,760,000 2,760,000 2,764,801 4,801
PPTRA 10,169,729 10,169,729 10,169.729 -
Mobile home utling tax 35,000 35.000 27.541 (7.459)
Vehicle rental tax 102,000 102,000 132,794 30,794
Local md Commonwealth state reduction (377,366) {377.366) (314.740) 62,626
Total noncategoneal aid 13,399,363 13,399,363 13,624,484 225,121
Categorical md:
Commonwealih’s Altomey 880,000 880,000 922,647 42,647
Commissioner of Revenue 150,000 150,000 156,120 6,120
Treasurer 180,000 180,000 190,438 10,438
Shenlfl 860,000 860,000 860,309 o
Circuit Coun Clerk 525,000 620,409 558,602 {61,807)
Registrar 48,000 48,000 69,658 11,658
Total calegorical aid 2,643,000 2,738,400 2,751,774 19,365
Other categorical aid
Pubdic assistance and welfane adminisiraion 3,830,000 3,830,000 3,351,023 (478.977)
Other categorical aid 640,000 640,000 946,026 306,026
Total other categorical md 4. 470,000 4.470,600 4,297,049 (172,951)
Total categorical aid 7.113,000 7,208,409 7,054,823 {153.586)
Total revenue from the Commonwealih 20,511,363 20,607,772 20,679,307 71,535
Revenue from the Federal government
Categorical aid:
Public assisiance and welfare administration 4,417,000 4,417.0dp 4,771,723 354,723
Emergency services 11,032 11,032 57,726 46,694
Parks, recreation and cultural 20,000 20,000 37,817 17,887
Total revenue from the Federm government 4,448,032 4.448.032 4,867,266 419,234
Total revenues 171,326,482 171,421,891 173,814,287 1,392,396

[Continuedk)
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EXHIBIT 10
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Variance with
Finat Budgel -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General Government adminsstration
Legislative:
City Council 5 426,040 S 104,162 § 410,743 § RRIL]
General and financial admiaistration
City Manager 1,085.759 [.557,116 1,539,551 17,565
Budget and strategic planning 448,812 485,681 480,881 4,800
City Attomey 981,870 978,161 963,327 14,834
Human resources 1,053.977 1,046,280 1,029,922 16,358
Comnussioner of the Revenue 950,249 964,249 951228 13.021
City Assessor 1,444,507 1,397,364 1,383.729 13,635
City Treasurer 1,337,235 1,491,235 1,476,875 14,360
Finance 1,291,172 1,192,125 1,149,226 42,899
Purchasing 314,078 300,678 26144 39,234
Capital Program Management 3,005,935 2,919,556 2.879.401 50,155
Communications 645,827 608,973 548,147 60,226
Local and regional organizations 86,305 986,382 435,949 433
Board of Elections:
Registrar 382,202 453,549 419,318 34,231
Tetal general govemment administration 14,353,068 14,805,511 14,480,341 325,170
Judicial administration:
Couns;
Circuit Court 184,518 182,518 177,633 4,885
District Court 60,133 55,133 44,767 10,366
Magistrate 16,940 14,940 14,124 816
Juvenile and Domesiic Relations Court 21,322 16,322 11,093 5129
Juvenile and Domestic Relations Count Service Unit 906,734 048,546 248,041 505
Circuit Court Clerk 1,295.814 1,436,720 1,355,982 80,738
Sheriff 2,245,891 2,195,673 2,143,701 51,972
Commonwealth Altomey 2,720,800 2,873,596 2,690,780 182,816
Total judicial administration 7,452,152 1123448 7,386,121 337,327
Public safcty:
Police 19,250,234 19,179,060 19,104,659 74401
Communicalions 1,626,580 1,545,187 1.479,868 65,319
Propesty seizure program - Federal - 160,865 1,928 158,937
Confiscation program - State - 197,889 107 197,782
DARE - 4,175 1,325 2,850
Fire 22,480,640 22,929,476 22,600,543 328933
Western Tidewater Regional Jail 2,588,491 2,588,491 2,588,491 -
Emergency services 57,654 58,319 51,397 6,922
Total public safety 46,003,609 46,663,462 45,828,318 835,144
Public works:
Admingstration 638,530 913993 862,716 61,277
Refuse collection 582,414 1,089,892 1,027,342.00 61,550
Total public works 1,220,944 2,013,885 1,800,058 123,827
(Continued)



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 10

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

EXPENIMTURES (Continued)
Health and welfane:

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Wesiem Tidewater Health Department
Westem Tidewater CSB

Soctal Services

Comprehensive Services Act

Total health and welfare

Education:
Contributions to comporent unit school board

Lease rent of building

Total education

Parks, recreation, and culiural:

Parks and recreation

Parks and recrcation maintenance
Parks and recreation support scrvices
Parks and recreation - recreation
Public libraries

Total parks. recreaiion. and culral

Community Development:

Community Development
Planning

Economic development
Tourism

Anima) shelter and management
Cooperative extension scevices

Total community development

Nondepanimental:

Fringe benefits amd insurance
Total nondepartmental

Total experclilures

Excess of revenues over expendilures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fund Balance Surplus - Assigned
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing uses, net

Net change in fund balances

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Statement:

Total net change in fund balance
Encumbrances

Total net change in fund balance per Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance (Exhibit 3}

GENERAL FUND
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeled Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis (Negnlive)
B40,000 § 240,000 § 80,000 §
281,152 281,152 281,152 -
10,226,213 11,462,769 10,511,909 950,860
1,792,494 2,045,555 1,616,743 428812
14,139,919 14,629 476 13,249,804 1.379.672
46,684,053 48,684,053 48,684,053 -
479,666 479,666 479,390 276
47,163,719 49,163,719 49,163,443 276
12127 1,186,262 1,185,956 306
1,713,849 1,730,727 1,692,146 38,581
414,237 482,943 479,819 N 2
1,764,261 1,769,182 1,697,539 T643
2,691,230 2,557,422 2514,581 42,841
7,797,368 7.726.536 1.570,041 156,495
2,460,874 2,973,359 2935346 35,012
1,392,424 1,620,348 1,557,961 62,387
793,089 7,166,528 1150773 14,755
500,342 500,000 442,658 57,342
702,126 775,583 740,013 35,570
76.154 48,154 42,063 6,001
5915509 13,083,972 12,869,814 214,158
223,388 654,871 649,541 5,330
213,388 654,871 649,541 5,330
144,280,576 156,464,880 153,087,481 3,377,399
27,045,906 14,957,011 20,726,806 (5,769,795)
- 12,088,895 - (12,088,895)
22463878 2,246,878 1,246,878 -
(29,292,784) (29,292,784} {28,506,012) 786,772
(27.045.906) (14.957.011) (26,259,134) (11,302,123
- § 0 s (5532,328) § (5532319
5 (5.532.328)
7,149,704
3 1,617,176



EXHIBIT 11
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
ROAD MAINTENANCE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Road Maintenance

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Permits, lees and licenses 5 175,000 §% 175000 % 222,105 % 47,105
Revenue from use of money and property - - 36,008 36,008
Charges for services 1,545,000 1,545,000 1,309,392 (235,608)
Miscellaneous 24,000 24,000 26,954 2,954
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth 19,659,945 19,659,945 20,105,759 445,814
Fund balance (rollover/appropriations) - 6,288,390 - (6,288,390)
Total revenues 21,403,945 27,692,335 21,700,218 (5,992,117}
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Works 19,127,538 25,415,928 20,469,330 4,946,598
Total expenditures 19,127,538 25,415,928 20,469,330 4,946,598
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expendilures 2,276,407 2,276,407 1,230,888 (1,045,519)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (2,276,407} (2,276,407) (2,276,407) -
Total other financing uses, net (2,276,407) (2,276,407 (2,276,407) -
Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ (1045519 $  (1,045519)

Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Statement:
Total net change in fund balance $ (1,045,519
Encumbrances 2,960,130
Total net change in fund balance per
Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and changes in Fund
Balance (Exhibit 14) $ 1,914,611
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

June 30,2013

EXHIBIT 12

The lellowing Schedule of Funding Progress is presented as unaudited required supplementary information applicable to the
participation of the City's employees and the School Board’s nonprofessional employees in the VRS agent multiple-employer
defined benelit pension plan, as described in note 11 of the accompanying basic financial statements. GAAP requires
presentation of this information in employer financial statements for the panticipation of employees in all agent multiple-
employer plans, other than those using the aggregate actuarial cost method, (this plan uses the entry age normal actuarial cost
method). This information is intended to help users assess the funded status of the plan and the progress made in accumulating
sufficient assets (o pay benefits when due.

{a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () {(b-n)/c)
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as of
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assels Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City:
June 30, 2012 $ 159,845,397  $225,029,519 § 65,184,122 71.03% $ 53,979914 120.76%
June 30, 2011 $ 157,369,852  $214,109548 $ 56,739,696 73.50% $ 52,788,904 107.48%
June 30, 2010 $ 150,572,774  $202,160,646 % 51,587,872 7448% % 52,101,413 99.01%
School Board:
June 30, 2012 $ 17,526,158 $ 22,002,180 § 4,476,022 79.66% $ 6,839,451 65.44%
June 30, 2011 $ 17353631 5§ 20908655 § 3,555,024 83.00% $ 7,038,507 50.51%
June 30, 2010 $ 16,807,237 § 20,116,600 $ 3,309,363 83.35% §$§ 7,204,137 45.94%
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

June 30, 2013

EXHIBIT 13

The following Schedule of Funding Progress is presented as unaudited required supplementary information applicable to the
participation of the City's and School Board’s employees in a single employer defined benefit plan for other postemployement
benefits, as described in note 12 of the accompanying basic financial statements. GAAP requires presentation of this
information in employer financial slatements. This information is intended to help users assess the funded status of the plan and

the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay bencefits when due.

(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)/c)
Unfunded
Actuarial UAAL as of
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assels Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
City:
July 1,2012 $ 14,389,399 $ 28,698,600 $ 14,309201 50.14% $ 355,725,400 25.68%
July 1, 2011 $ 11,918,849 § 21,100,600 $ 9,181,751 56.49% $ 52,047,300 17.64%
July 1, 2009 $ 12,672,664 $ 27341308 3§ 14,668,644 46.35% § 58,766,577 24.96%
School Board:
July 1, 2013 $ ©o,895900 $ 14,172900 $ 4,277,000 69.82% $ 58,391,400 7.32%
July 1, 2011 $ 6,050,180 $ 16559900 §$ 10,509,720 36.54% $ 58,739,000 17.89%
July 1, 2009 5 4315618 $ 17,122,042 $ 12,806,424 25.21% $ 59,353,222 21.58%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditures for particular purposes.

Suffolk Taxing District Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures related to
services provided in the Suffolk Taxing District. Most revenues are derived from a
specific percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments in the Suffolk Taxing
District. These additional assessments ceased as of July 1, 2007,

Downtown Business Overlay District Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures
related to services provided in the Downtown Business Overlay District. Most revenues
are derived from a specific percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments in the
Downtown Business Overlay District.

Consolidated Grants Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures involving
governmental grant programs.

Law Library Fund -- accounts for the maintenance of a law library. Revenue is derived
from court fees.

Route 17 Taxing District Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures related to
services provided in the Route 17 Taxing District. Most revenues are derived from a
specific percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments in the route 17 Taxing
District.

Mosquito Taxing District Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures related to
mosquito spraying services provided in the Mosquito Taxing District. Most revenues are
derived from a specific percentage of the annual real estate tax assessments in the
Mosquito Taxing District. These additional assessments ceased as of July 1, 2007.

Cemetery Fund — accounts for monies received from the sale of burial sites, lots, and
mausoleum sites, the revenue from which is to be applied to the perpetual care of the
City’s cemeteries.

Aviation Fund - accounts for revenues generated through use of airport facilities and
governmental grant programs to be used solely for expansion, maintenance, and use of
city municipal airport.

Transit Fund -- accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with the City’s bus
services. The revenue comes from a combination of state grants and fares collected from
the passengers.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Varionce with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Pasitive
Originnl Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Revenue from use of money and property $ - S - s 319,103 s 319,103
Total revenues - - 319,103 319,103
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Principal 15,617,376 15,617,376 15,512,377 104,999
Bond issuance costs . 170,000 168,343 (1,657}
Interest and other fiscal charges 10,033,448 9,863,448 9,702,110 161,338
Total expenditures 25,650,824 25,650,824 25,382,830 264,680
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over {under)
expenditures (25,650,824}  (25,650,824) (25,063,727} 587,097
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - 13,732,503 13,732,503
Payment to escrow agent - - {13,568,249) (13,568,249)
Transfers in 25,650,824 25,650,824 24,981,083 (669,741)
Total other financing sources (uses), net 25,650,824 25,650,824 25,145,337 (505,487
Net change in fund balances S - 8 - S 81,610 $ 81,610
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EXHIBIT 17
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Transit
Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negntive)
REVENUES
Permilts, fees and licenses 5 - $ - 5 - $ -
Revenue from vse of money and property - - 1,754 1,754
Charges for services 34,800 34,800 471971 13,171
Miscellaneous - 68,516 68,516 -
Intergovernmental:
Revenue from the Commonwealth 211,491 303,980 275,127 (28,853}
Total revenues 246,291 407,296 393,368 (13,928)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation 845,770 1,006,775 973,007 33,768
Total expenditures 845,770 1,006,775 973,007 33,768
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (599,479) (599.479) (579,639) 19,840
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 599479 599,479 599,479 -
Total other financing sources net 599,479 599,479 599,479 -
Net change in fund balances 3 - $ - $ 19,840 §$ 19,840
Reconciliation to Governmental Fund Statement:
Total net change in fund balance $ 19,840
Encumbrances 84,671
Total net change in fund balance per Stalement of Revenues,
Expenditures and changes in Fund Balance (Exhibit 14) 3 104,511
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for:

Stormwater Utility Fund -- accounts for the maintenance and improvements to the
City's stormwater infrastructure. All activities necessary to provide such services are
funded by charges to citizens and are accounted for in this fund.

Refuse Fund -- accounts for the provision of refuse and waste management services. All
activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but
not limited to, administration, operation, billing, and collections.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
OPEB asset
Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Compensated absences
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

EXHIBIT 18

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater

Utility Refuse Taotal
% 2,158,380 % 1,635416 § 3,793,805
189,994 283,730 473,724
2,348,383 1,919,146 4,267,529
30,532 - 30,532
21,842 - 21,842
52,374 - 52,374
2,400,757 1,919,146 4,319,903
79,935 146,666 226,601
8.373 4,727 13,100
5,643 2,505 8,148
93,951 153,898 247,849
68,842 88,568 157,410
68,842 88,568 157,410
162,793 242 466 405,259
21,842 - 21,842
2,216,122 1,676,680 3,892,802
5 2237964 % 1,676,68¢ $ 3,914,644
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 19

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Contractual services
Administration
Supplics
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Depreciation
Building and equipment rental
Other charges
Total operating expenses
Operaling income
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest income
Net nonoperating revenues
Income beflore contributions and transfers
Transfers out
Change in net position
Net position at July |
Net position at June 30

Business-type Actives - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater
Utility Refuse Total
$ 4,460,628 % 6,305,236 10,765,864
34,272 4,680 38,952
4,494,900 6,309,916 10,804,816
1,909,874 1,505,079 3,414,953
377,562 1,468,233 1,845,795
672,781 2,085,473 2,758,254
159,570 83,730 243,300
4,974 11,335 16,309
8,653 20,104 28,757
8.815 - 8,815
60,402 - 601,402
47,009 30,301 77,310
3,249,640 5,204,255 8,453,895
1,245,260 1,105,661 2,350,921
5,133 2,244 7,377
5,133 2,244 7,377
1,250,393 1,107,905 2,358,298
(1,630,339) {196,389) (1,826,728)
(379,946) g11,516 531,570
2617910 765,164 3,383,074
3 2237964 § 1,676,680 3,914,644
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

EXHIBIT 20

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employecs
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers to other funds
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net cash provided by tnvesting activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning, July |
Ending, June 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (o net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in;
Receivables, net
OPEB asset
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued payrol] and related liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

&l

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds

Stormwater
Utility Refuse Tolal
§ 4465753 § 6,331,123 § 10,796,876
(1,900,335) {1,488,561) (3,388,896)
(1,387,633) (3,742,572) (5,130,205)
1,177,785 1,099,990 2,271,775
(1,630,339) (196,389) (1,826,728)
(1,630,339) (196,389) (1,826,728)
5,133 2,244 1377
5,133 2,244 7,377
(447,421) 905,845 458,424
2,605,810 729,571 3,335,381
$ 2158389 $ 1635416 $ 3,791,805
$ 1,245260 § 1,105661 $ 2,350,921
8815 F 8.815
(23,151) 21,207 (1,944)
(5,997) - (5,997)
(56,681) (43,396} {100,077)
9,539 16,518 26,057
$ LI77,785 % 1,099990 $ 2277775
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for:

Information Technology Fund - account for technology infrastructure and allocates
costs to the various departments or agencies using the service.

Fleet Management Fund - accounts for, on a cost-reimbursement basis, the financing of
vehicles and the related maintenance, repairs, and fuel costs and allocates those costs to
the various departments or agencies using the equipment,

Risk Management Fund -- accounts for the funding and payment of auto, personal
liability, general liability, health insurance, and workers' compensation claims against the
City exclusive of the School Board employees. Charges to other funds are based on
estimated claims for the year.
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EXHIBIT 21

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30,2013
Information Fleet Risk
Technology Management Management Total
ASSETS
Curreni assets:
Cash and cash equivalents % 2587315 % 4,157,053 $ 10,362,022 § 17,106,390
Cash and cash equivalents, resiricted 300,000 227,432 - 527432
Receivables, net - 154,983 62,399 217,382
Inventories - 240,801 - 240,801
Total current assets 2,887,315 4,780,269 10,424,421 18,092,005
Noncurrent assels:
OPEB asset 20,353 23,408 3,053 46,816
Land and construction in progress 616,066 298,000 - 914,066
Other capital assets, net 1,664,848 20,300,089 528,897 22,493,834
Total noncurrent assels 2,301,269 20,621,497 531,950 23,454,716
Total assets 5,188,584 25,401,766 10,956,371 41,546,721
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitics:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 143,669 552,655 100,426 796,750
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 4,652 3613 1,023 9,288
Claims payable - 1,694,423 1,694,423
Accrucd interest 200 5,601 - 5,801
Compensated absences 17,657 5,522 1,340 24,519
Capital leases 61,827 1,512,929 - 1,574,756
Total current liabilities 228,005 2,080,320 1,797,212 4,105,537
Noncurrent liabilitics:
Compensated absences 63,151 76,115 14,838 154,104
Claims payable - - 1,538,323 1,538,323
Capital leases 205,308 2,568,130 S 2,773,438
Tolal noncurrent liabilities 268,459 2,644,245 1,553,161 4,465,865
Total liabilities 496,464 4,724,565 3,350,373 8,571,402
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,013,779 16,517,030 528,897 19,059,706
Restricied:
Other Purposes 300,000 227,432 - 527,432
Unrestricted 2,378,341 3,932,739 7,077,101 13,388,181
Total net position $ 4,692,120 % 20677201 $ 7,605998 $ 32,975319
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EXHIBIT 22

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Information Fleet Risk
Technology Management Management Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 4875970 § 10,103,880 % 17487511 $ 32467361
Other 6,666 17,929 208,776 233,371
Total operating revenues 4,882,636 10,121,809 17,696,287 32,700,732
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 1,322,137 1,037,181 331,874 2,691,192
Seif-insured claims - - 12,311,758 12,311,758
Contractual services 1,548,924 9,587 36,710 1,595,221
Administration 239,835 680,469 29,337 949,641
Supplies 8,423 50,488 10,658 69,569
Repairs and maintenance 81,019 18,388 - 99,407
Vehicle and power equipment - fuel - 2,314,009 - 2,314,009
Vehicle and power equipment — supplies - 1,946,986 - 1,946,986
Compuiers and Equipment 520,004 - - 520,004
Utilities 80,575 33,750 3,077 117,402
Insurance - - 2,088,586 2,088,586
OPEB - contributions to trust - - 1,865,700 1,865,700
Depreciation 348,114 3,756,399 55,856 4,160,369
Building and equipment rental 73,930 35,145 4,428 113,503
Other charges 27,266 45,844 36,323 109,433
Total operating expenses 4,250,227 9,928,246 16,774,307 30,952,780
Operating income 632,400 193,563 021,980 1,747,952
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Gain on disposal of capital assets 5,680 156,624 - 162,304
Interest income 8,589 14,119 35,337 58,045
Interest expense (4,206) (105,155) - (109,361}
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 10,063 65,588 35,337 110,988
Net income before contributions and transfers 642,472 259,151 957,317 1,858,940
Capital contributions - - 584,753 584,753
Transflers in - 1,764,000 - 1,764,000
Transfers out (201,111) (321,144) (1,261,379) (1,783,634)
Change in nel position 441,361 1,702,007 280,691 2424059
Net position at July 1 4,250,759 18,975,194 7,325,307 30,551,260
Net position at June 30 $ 4,692,120 $ 206772001 $ 7605998 % 32975319
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EXHIBIT 23
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Information Fleet Risk
Technology  Management _ Management Total
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users 5 4933053 5 10,046,953 § 17,651,864 S 32,631,870
Payments to employees (1,337,212) (1,020,207) (387,283) (2,744,702)
Payments to suppliers (2,646,012) (4,755,149) (17,011,455) (24,412,616)
Net cash provided by operating activities 949,829 4,271,597 253,126 5,474,552
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds - 1,764,000 S 1,764,000
Transfers to other funds (201,111) (321,144) (1,261,379) (1,783,634)
Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities (201,111) 1,442,856 (1,261,379) (19,634)
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (295,933) (6,423,713 - (6,719,646)
Lease financing procceds 300,000 2,661,000 - 2,961,000
Principal paid on capital lease obligations (94,205) (1,917,210} - {2.011,415)
Gain on sale of assels 5,680 156,624 - 162,304
Interest paid on debt (4,006) (114,031) (118,037)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activitics (88,464) (5,637,330) (5,725,794)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earned 8,589 14,119 35,337 58,045
Net increase (decreasce) in cash and cash equivalents 668,843 01,242 (972,916) (212,831)
Beginning, July | 2,218,472 4,293,243 11,334,938 17,846,653
Ending, June 30 S 2887315 S 4384485 5§ 10362,022 S 17,633,822
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,587,315 § 4,157053 5 10,362,022 S 17,106,390
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 300,000 227,432 - 527,432
5 2887315 S5 4,384,485 § 10,362,022 $ 17,633,822
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income S 632409 S 193,563 S 921,980 5 1,747,952
Adjustments o reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 348,114 3,756,399 55,856 4,160,369
Changes in assets and liabilitics:
(increase)} decrease in:
Receivables, net 54,415 (70,258) (43,822) (59.665)
Inventories - (11,247) - (11,247)
OPERB asset (3,998) (4,598) (600) (9,196)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities (66,036) 390,764 (99,847) 224,881
Accrued payroll and related liabilities (15,075) 16,974 (55,408) (53,509
Claims payable - - {525,033) (525,033)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 949,829 § 4,271,597 5 253,126 § 5,474,552
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Non-cash capital contributions S - S S S 584,753 8 584,753
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for private
organizations or other governments, Funds in this category include:

Special Welfare Fund — accounts for receipt of welfare checks and foster children
support checks from the state and payments made on behalf of individuals.

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund - accounts for monies collected by the City on behalf
of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Western Tidewater Water Authority -- accounts for monies held by the City as an
agent for this public or independent organization.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

EXHIBIT 24

June 30, 2013
Waestern
Special Welfare Commonwealth of Tidewater Water
Fund Virginia Fund Authority Total
$ 28,369 % 12,150 % 782,752 % 823,271
b 28369 §$ 12,150 & 782,752 % 823,271
3 28,369 % 12,150 % 782,752 §$ 823,271
$ 28369 § 12,150 % 782,752 % 823,271
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 25

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Special Welfare Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

Commonwealth of Virginia Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others
Total labilities

Western Tidewater Water Authority

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

Total All Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Balance Balance
July 1,2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
$ 27514 % 111,106 $ 110,251 § 28,369
$ 27514 $ 111,106 § 110,251 % 28,369
$ 27514 $ 111,106 $ 110,251 $ 28,369
$ 27514 % 111,106 $ 110,251 § 28,369
$ 1,820 % 151,802 $ 141472 § 12,150
$ 1,820 $ 151,802 $ 141472 % 12,150
5 1,820 % 151,802 § 141472 § 12,150
$ 1,820 § 151,802 § 141472 § 12,150
$ 312226 $5,665,714 $5,195/188 $ 782,752
$ 312,226 $5,665714 $5,195188 § 782,752
$ 312,226 $5,665714 $5,195,188 % 782,752
$ 312226 $5,665714 $5,195,188 % 782,752
$ 341,560 5,928,622 5446911 § 823,271
$ 341,560 $5,928,622 $5446911 % 823271
$ 341,560 5,928,622 5446911 § 823,271
$ 341,560 $5928,622 $5446911 § 823,271
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT
UNIT - CITY OF SUFFOLK SCHOOL BOARD

School Operating Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to the
operation of the City of Suffolk Public Schools. Revenues are derived from the City’s
General Fund and from state and Federal funds.

School Food Service Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to the
operation of school cafeterias. Revenues are derived from state and Federal funds and
cafeteria sales.

School Grants Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to grants
received by the school system from Federal and state governments.

OPEB Trust Fund - accounts for the other postemployment benefits (OPEB). This fund
accumulates resources for health insurance for retired employees.

Combined Scheol Activity Funds - accounts for the various activity funds of each of
the schools. Revenues are derived from school fundraisers, athletic and state event
receipts, and School Board allocations.

The Pruden Center for Industry and Technology Component Unit — accounts for
revenues and expenditures relating to operations of the Center. Revenues are derived
primarily from local appropriations.



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK



EXHIBIT 26
CITY OF SUFFOLK, YIRGINIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT SCHOOL BOARD

June 30, 2013
School Subtotal The Pruden
School School Food Excluding Center for Total
Operating Gronts Service Comg Industry & School
Fund Fund Fund Unit Technology Board
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 5 19557517 8 - s 3149079 8 22706596 § W5,165  $  22911,761
Receivables, net 173,722 20915 7,187 201,824 17,594 219,418
Due from other govemments 1,350,749 3093212 745,458 5,189.419 - 5,189,419
Inveniories 139,535 - 361.620 501,155 - 501,155
Prepaid items 95,000 - - 95,000 - 95,000
Total assets $ 21316523 5 34,127 0§ 4263348 0§ 28693994 § 222759 § 28916753
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable s 1,340,304 § 45000 3§ 3013t 8 1.686,706 § 41,005 § 1,721,711
Accrued payroll and relared lizbilities 17,006,089 2,637,379 170,011 19.813,479 153,671 19,967,150
Due to other governmenis 41,051 - - 41.051 17.120 58.171
Total liabilities 18,387,444 2.682.469 471,323 21,541,236 211,796 21,753,032
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Inventorics and prepaids 139,535 - 361,620 501,155 - 501,155
Premiums held for workers compensation claims 516,140 - - 516,140 - 516,140
Premiums held for bealth insurance claims 180,122 - - 380,122 - 380,122
Committed
Grant local maich - 357.600 - 357,600 - 357,600
Assigned
Special revenue - - 3,428,001 3,428,001 - 3,428,001
Encumbrances 1,893,282 234,560 2,400 2,130,242 5 2,130,242
Unassigned - {160,502) - (160,502) 10,963 (149,539
Total fund balances 2,929,079 431,658 3,792,02) 7.152,758 10,963 7,163,721
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 21316523 § 3114127 5 4263344 5 28693994 S 222759 § 28916753

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit 1)
Total fund balance 3 7163721
Capital assets used in governmental activities are nol financial
resources and, therefone, are nol neported in the funds.
School Boand 130,078,232
I'ruden Center 1,785,563

Long-tcrm liabilities an: not Jue and payable in the cunrent
period and, therelore, ane mu reporied in the Tunds.

Other postemploymem benclits (2,731,776)
School Buard Compensated ahsctices (1.815,367)
Pruden Center Compensated absences (82,673)

Net position of governmenta] activitics $ 134.391.700
———————
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT SCHGOL BOARD

REVENUES
Revenue from use of meney and propeny
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovermmental:
City contribution
Revenue from the Commonwealth
Revenue from the Federal Gavernment
School Board contribution to Pruden Center
Isle of Wright coninbution to Pruden Cenler
Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Editeation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Orher financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balances

Fund balances at July 1
Fund balances at June 30

EXHIBIT 27

Reconciliation to the Stalement of Activities (Exhibit 2)

Nel change in Fund balance - governmental fund

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of thase assets is allocated over their estimaled

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Depreciation Expense for the School Board
Capitalized expenditures

Pruden Center Depreciation Expense
Pruden Center Capitalized Expenditures

Revenues in the S1atement of Activities that do not provide curem financial resources ane

ol reported as revenues in the funds.

Losses on the disposal of capital assels are not reported

as expenditures in the funds

Compensated absences and other postemployment benefits
are ned due and payable a1 June 30, and therefore are not reported in the fund statements.
This amount represents the current year change in those items for the School Board

This amount represents the current year change in those items for the School Board - OPEB
This amount represents the current year change in compensated absences for the Pruden Center

Change in net position of governmenial activities

Year Ended June 30, 2013
School Subtotal The Pruden
School School Food Excluding Cenier for Tolal
Operating Grunts Service Component Industry & School
Fund Fund Fund Unit ‘Technology Board
L 43 s - 6493 % BOBI5 § - 5 80,815
135,072 - 2,330,654 2465726 11,770 2477496
596,163 286,189 325,248 1,207,600 - 1,207,600
48,644,329 - . 44,644,329 - 48,644,329
73,102,395 1,048,534 154,425 74,305,354 26,000 74.331,354
959,586 8,176,152 4,343,958 13,479,696 - 13,479,696
- - - - 1,850,614 1,850,614
- = . - 853,051 853,051
123,511,867 9.510.875 7.160,778 140,183,520 2. 741,435 142,024,055
128,664,533 9,770.600 6.687.318 145,122,451 3,011,032 (48,133,483
128,664,533 9.770,600 6,687,318 145,122,451 3,011,032 148,133,483
(5,152,666} (259,725) 473,460 (4.938,931) {269.597) (5,208,528)
- 79,013 79,013 - 79,013
(79.013) - - {79.013) - (19.013)
{79,013) 79,013 - = - -
(5,231,679 {180,712y 473460 (4,938,931 (269,597) (5,208,528)
8,160,758 612,370 3.318.561 12,091.689 280,560 12,372,249
$ 2929079 § 431,658 3792021 $ 7,152,758 § 10963 S 7,163,721
$  (5.208,528)
(7,892,014
2.031,594
(189,485)
187,005
{1,289,059)
“4.510)
44,117
(954,85T)
5,177

§ (13,280,914
e —



68

09P'ELY $ (L96) $  €6P'TLE § @Lostr  § (09S'tET) 8 ITLTCIF) 5 (GLOIET'S) S €68'E60T  § (SBLLEIE) §
BIE'LBY'S L96 SBT'RRI'D 009'0LL'6 095°pET 091°s00°01 OPS'ErL'8T1 (E68'€60°0) T89'619'9¢1

- : : - % - £10°6L E EI0°6L
BIE'L89'9 L96 S8TREY'D 009'0LL'6 095°rET 091°500°01 EEC'HO9'RTI (£68°c60'T 6£9'0L8'9T1
BLL'O9I'L : BLLOINL B8E'685'6 n BER'685°6 LOR'TIS ETI g LOB'TISETL

- - E EI06L g £10'6L - B :
8LLOS1'L § - § BLLDOI'L §  SLROISE  § : §  SLEOISe  §  L981IS'ETI § g $ L9R'1IS'EE S
LT nynpey su)| 67 MOy LT Naxy swayg 62 Nara £T MURxE susa)p 6T Naygxy

mlog, pasegp 18png Imog 150 naseg 18png [LINR [LiLAR pasug 1ilpny [LIDAN

PUNg 334125 pooy [00KIS PUN SIURID) ooiag pun Suprsadp jooyag
£10T *4€ 3un[ papug dmay

8T LIGTHXA

a¥vOod "TOOHDS — LINN ANINOdIWOD TALNASIH ATALTHOSIA - SUNNA TVINTINNYAAOD
JTNAAHIS NOLLYITIONOODTY Advi3aodnd

VINID™IA *¥104408 40 AL

sacue[oq punj ut sadueya jan
samypuadys jeio],

sasn Juioueuly 3o (o],
saunypuadxa oy,

SIRUIAA RI0)

saanos Suouvui} Jago Jeiog,
SINUIADI [EI0L,



9ie'elr §  ter'iir  § (€Er'D) 1) - § (86T'tLS) § (TLTsip) s : $ T §  60FSE $ (SBLLErD § (9BLUEID § " $ S3m[Eq PUnY L1 38uTyd N
- - - 3 (£10'6L) £10'6L . : (€10°6L) (£10°6L) 5 - (s2sn) saunos Jutaueuyy 1o [E10),
- x : - - - . €106 €100 . - Mo s13j5uEs
- . - - (E10'6L) E10°6L J . . . - . ol SIajsunL),

(53801) SFIUNOS DNIDNVNIL HANLO

sampuadxa
9I6'ELE E6rTLE (EEF'E) S (58TT6T) (E8Trat} - . TTRFEL (ZLL'8SOE} (98L°LEN'E) - (33pun} 3340 saNUAAL JO (£3u311)9p) S530%F
07e99t SRT'8R9'D S09'tS1°L cirest'e 091°£96) 091°500'01 000°TH0'o 000'THO'6 816901 GEO'OLE'ITI  LSS'LL9'9T1 ILL'GESETI saunnpuadss o),
07C'99T $8T8R9'9 SOTFSI'L TLUESIL : E - E - - - : $221A335 poo-f
U e : : {091'E96) 091°'500°'01 000'TH0'6 000°2+0'6 - : : - sanpuadya o
- c = E . = = N 816'901 GEYOLE'OT1  LSE'LLO'OTL  1LL'6ES'ET) votenpyg
RUET o)
STUNLIANIIXA
909°L BLL'OBI'L TLI'EsIL TLIresI'L SLE'R9F SLR'01S'6 0O0°'THO'G 000°TH'G H06'LT) LIBTISETl  BLL'GESETI [LL'6ESECT SONUAAALN [BIO],
BS6'0FE BeALE'r 000'€00'r 000'E00't £S9°1LT osraLl's L6E't06°L 000'oLl'8 (906" 1Z7) 9857650 611811 000'S50'1 IUAMURLIA0E) [FS3P3] 311 WI0I] SNUAIY
[54 e ST TSI 000zEl 000°ZE) (696°88) res'sro'l £0§°LEN'] 000°TLL 126°20% S6E'TOI'EL rirreiTL 996'SE0'EL PEIMUOUANO]) ) LOIJ INUIAIY
. - - - - - . : 6TI'1 GIETH'Br  QOT'ErO'RF  QOT'EMY'SE AL J0 413 W woyy uopngumo)}
RUITE THTSENY S AT
(+26'91€) BYT'TE LIty LT 681'982 681'98¢2 B 000001 (L£8°'86) £91'968 000’569 000069 STOAIT] 335N
Gre'er) FSO0LE'T 000'SLE'T 000°SLE'T = . = 2 L9T'6S Lo'sel SO9'SL $09°SL 5221035 10} s3rTy)
£61's § E6K9 € 0ol §  000°1 s 3 ) x $ ¥ $ i § e § it $ 00005 § 000'0§ < Auadoad put Lauow Jo 9sR WO SNUIAIY
SANNIATY
(3jfjesoaryun) [CEY LK | [owduQ  (qwosCiun) [emay [ F Uiy (aqeieanjur) [y Jeutq [LTETT)
JBacan Qo] Iquioary
- jaipng [oug SHUNoWY pajsdpng - 1dpng [ewg sjunowy papRdpng ~1aldpng g sunowy paRipng
Yia 3dunie g s DIUBLITA Hiw dduBLITA
PURj 344235 oo [90PS punyg suBdd) jomps pung JupesHlQ jootps

£10Z ‘08 3unf papuz Jeay
(UVO4 1CGOIIS ~ LINM ANINOINOD QAUNISTH ATALIHISIA
{sisugt amadpng JyvD-uoN TVILLOY ANV L32A0M - STONVIVE ANNA N STONVID ANV “STURLIONTIXT ‘STINTATY 40 314031105

VINLOHIA *MT044NS 30 ALID
6T LINIX3



EXHIBIT 30
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

June 30, 2013
OPEB Trust School Activity
Fund Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents $ 9,967,590 5 1,257,495

Total assets 9,967,590 1,257,495
LIABILTIES

Amounts held for students - 1,257,495

Total liabilitics S 1,257,495
Net Position

Held in trust for OPEB benefits 9,967,590 -

Net position 3 9,967,590 $ S
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

EXHIBIT 31

OPEB TRUST FUND - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

Additions:
Employer Contributions
Gain on investments

Total additions

Deductions:
Administrative fees

Total deductions

Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year

Year Ended June 30, 2013

92

School Board

$ 1,467,100

808,599

2,275,699

8,214

8,214

2,267,485

7,700,105

$ 9,967,590




EXHIBIT 32
CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS - DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Balance
Beginning Balance
of Year Additions Deletions End of Year
Asscts:
Cash and cash cquivalents % 1,197,847 $ 2,462,077 5 2,402,429 § 1,257,495
Liabilitics:

Amounts held for students  § 1,197,847 3 2,462,077 b 2,402,429 $ 1,257,495
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of the City of Suffolk Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note to financial statements, and
requiired supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Table
Financial Trends 1-4

These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 5-12
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the
City’s ability to generate its property and sales taxes, as well as revenues from its
water and sewer operations.

Debt Capacity 13-15
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 16-17
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment in which the City’s financial activities take place and to help make
comparison over time and with other governments.

Operating Information 18-20
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and resources to help
the reader understand how the City’s financial information relates to the services the
City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (PER HUNDRED) (1)

Table 7

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Real Property (2)
Downtown
Suffolk Route 17 Mosquito Business Machinery Minimum
Fiscal Taxing City Taxing Control Overlay Personal and Total Direct
Year District Wide District District District Property (3) Tools (4) Rate (5)
2004 1.24 1.08 0.26 0.04 - 425 3.15 533
2005 1,24 1.08 0.26 0.04 - 4.25 3.15 533
2006 1.22 1.06 0.26 0.04 - 425 3.15 531
2007 0.98 0.94 0.26 0.04 0.13 425 3.15 5.19
2008 (6) - 0.94 0.26 - 0.13 425 315 3.19
2009 - 0.91 0.26 - 0.13 4.25 315 5.16
2010 - 091 0.26 - 0.13 4.25 3.15 5.16
200 - 091 0.26 - 0.13 4.25 315 5.16
2012 - 0.97 0.26 - 0.13 4.25 315 5.16
2013 - 0.97 0.25 - 0.12 4.25 3.15 5.16
(1) The City is not a component of any overlapping governments; thercfore, it does not share any overlapping tax rates nor debt.
(2) Real property is assessed at 100% of estimated actual value, except land use property which approximates 30%,
{3) Vehicles are assessed at 100% of average loan value.
(4) Assessed at 20% of original cost during the first five years of life; 10% thereafier,
(5) The district 1ax rates include the City-wide rate. Additienally, districts overlap some propertics, resulting in those properties being

(]

-

taxed at the City rate plus the additional rate for each applicable district. Therefore, only the City-wide rate is used with the personal
property rate to calculate the Minimum Total Direct Rate.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2008, the Suffolk Taxing District and Mosquito Control District supplemental taxes were no longer assessed because the

City instituted a city-wide mosquito control program and incorporated the fees associated with those services inta the storm water

utility fee.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Table 8

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Real Property
2013 2004
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Value (1) Value Value (1)
City of Norfolk Municipal Water System S 55,690,600 063% § 19,980,900 0.49%
116 Lakeview Patkway, LLC Joint Military Training Facility 54,180,500 0.62% - -
CVN Distribution Distribution Warchouse 44,294,900 0.50% 35,801,700 0.89%
Centerpoint Properties Trust Real Property Management 42,655,700 0.49%
Sysco Food Services of Hampton Roads Food Service Distribution 42,381,300 048% 24,295,200 0.60%
Target Corporation Distribution Warehouse 39,245,000 0.45% 42,287,300 1.05%
TowneBank Financial Institution 36,527,400 0.42%
Wal-Mart Stores Retail Merchandisc 31,868,600 0.36% 21,439,400 0.53%
Lake Prince Center, Inc. Retirement Community 30,023,600 0.34% 23,102,200 0.57%
Belleville Widow & Orphans Counscling Services 27,313,400 0.31% - -
Fortress GSA Suffolk, LLC Joint Military Training Facility - - 34,456,500 0.85%
JM Smucker Company Beverage Company - - 28,802,400 0.71%
BASF Comoration Chemical Plant - - 25,831,500 0.64%
Forest Paper Products 22,076,800 0.55%
5 404,180,400 4.61% S 278,074,300 6.88%
(1) Total Assessed Value (does not include public service corporations) $  8,776,025,000 § 4044414400
Source: City of Suffolk Assessor's Office
Personal Property
2013 2004
Percentage Percentage
of Tatal City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Value Value (2) Value Value (2)
Unilever/Lipton, Inc. Beverage Company $ 10,581,750 1.26% $ 5,353,820 0.88%
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant 10,027,460 1.19% 8,459,180 1.39%
Planters/Kraft Foods Food Processing 8,191,380 0.98% 6,542,240 1.07%
CVN Distribution Distribution Warchouse 7,411,720 0.88% 4,257,140 0.70%
JM Smucker Company Beverage Company 5,311,820 0.63% 4,269,850 0.70%
Lockheed Martin Corporation Technology Company 4,869,500 0.58% - -
Massimo Zanetti Beverage USA Beverage Company 4,072,510 0.49% - -
Sysco Food Services of Hampion Roads Food Service Distribution 3,840,920 0.46% 1,694,810 0.28%
Target Corporation Distribution Warchouse 3,675,260 0.44%: - -
Charter Cornmunications Cable Products 2,631,190 0.31% 2,499,470 041%
Vitex Packaging Packaging Warchouse - - 1,304,040 0.21%
Suffolk Energy Partners L.P. Energy Services - . 1,280,400 0.21%
Viacom Broadcasting of Seatile, Inc. Media Broadcasting - 869,090 0.14%
$ 60,613,510 7.22% $ 36,530,040 6.00%
(2} Total Assessed Value (does not include public service corporations) ) 839,643,073 b 608,825,985
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, YIRGINIA

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Tabhle 9

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Tax Collections
Delinquent Total Outstanding
As Delinquent
Percent of Taxes
Current Percent Delinguent Outstanding AtEnd
Fiscal Total Tax Tax of Levy Tax Delinquent Total Tax of Fiscal
Year Levy {I) Collections Collected Collections Taxes Collections (2) Year (2)
2004 66,303,851 65,447,182 928.71% 777,317 40.50% 66,224,499 1,919,065
2005 74,108,747 73,148,580 98.70% 745,533 36.69% 73,894,113 2,032,137
2006 87,028,625 85,921,671 98.73% 068,148 46.59% 86,889,819 2,077,972
2007 98,604,779 97,146,638 98.52% 951,030 40.71% 98,097,668 2,336,057
2008 107,353,414 105,361,772 98.14% 933,545 88.23% 106,295,317 1,058,097
2009 112,502,640 110,007,171 97.78% 1,475,446 40.49% 111,482,617 3,643,790
2010 109,732,744 107,359,137 97.84% 1,585,519 38.92% 108,944,656 4,073,288
2011 111,072,859 108,430,361 07.62% 2,711,843 65.92% 111,142,204 4,113,644
2012 115,190,689 112,303,915 07.49% 1,970,995 43.95% 114,274,910 4,484,190
2013 116,106,208 113,620,442 97.86% 2,307,092 55.20% 115,927,534 4,179,156

Note A:  Delinquent real property taxes not collected within three years, a lien is recorded on the property of the collection thereof. Collecitons in

subsequent years represent delinguent accounts collected during the course of that fiscal year for all prior fiscal years.

(1) Beginning in the year ended Junc 30, 2000, the tax levy includes the Commonwealth’s reimbursement.

(2) Adjusted for collections through August 15.

Source: City Treasurer

Property Tax Levies and Collections
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL WATER AND SEWER CONSUMERS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Table 11

Annual
Consumption % of Tatal
in Gallons Annual
Water Consumers Type of Business {Hundred Cubic Feet) Consumption (1)

Western Tidewater Water Authority Regional Water Supply 207,849 8.84%
JM Smucker Company Beverage Company 49,562 211%
Western Tidewater Regional Jail Jail-Regional Facility 49,100 2.09%
Suffolk Public Schools Education 31,106 1.32%
Sentara/Obici Hospital Hospital 29,695 1.26%
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant 24,255 1.03%
Planters/Kraft Foods Food Processing 19,310 0.82%
Wanchese Fish Company Secalood Processing 18,574 0.79%
Unilvever/Lipion, Inc. Beverage Company 18,379 0.78%
Harbour Breeze Apartments Real Property Management 13,570 0.58%

461,400 19.62%
(1) Total annual consumption (all water customers) 2,351,849

Annual
Consumption % of Total
in Gallons Annual
Sewer Consumers Type of Business (Hundred Cubic Feet) Consumption (2)

Westemn Tidewater Regional Jail Jail-Regional Facility 49,100 2.63%
IM Smucker Company Beverage Company 44,463 2.38%
Suffolk Public Schools Education 31,106 1.66%
Sentara/Obici Hospital Hospital 29,695 1.59%
BASF Corporation Chemical Plant 27,9318 1.49%
Wanchese Fish Company Seafood Processing 18,574 0.99%
Harbour Breeze Apartments Real Propenty Management 13,570 0.73%
Unilever/Lipton, Inc. Beverage Company 11,646 0.62%
Lake Prince Center Real Property Management 9916 0.53%
Nansemond Square LLC Real Property Management 8,987 0.48%

244,995 13.10%
(2) Total annual consumption {all sewer customers) 1,870,431

Sonrce: Department of Public Ulilities
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, YIRGINIA

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Table 13

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*
Other Governmental
General Bonded Debt (1) Percenlage of Activilies Deht
General Estimated Actual Section

Fiscal Obligation Literary Nates Taxable Value Per Capital 108 Loan

Year ** Bonds (2) Bonds Payahle Total of Property (3) Caplta (4) Leases Payable
2004 145,902,761 8,250,000 - 154,152,761 3.60% 2,135 2,686,055 -
2005 154,332,167 7,750,000 3,000,000 165,082,167 3.31% 2,175 3,168,162 -
2006 154,713,167 7,250,000 4.196,949 166,160,116 267% 2121 8,370,710 -
2007 204,452,387 6,750,000 1,588,475 212,790,862 2.59% 2,674 8,767,219 3,845,000
2008 216,848 461 6,250,000 480,000 223,578,461 2.36% 2,757 6,354,783 3,652,000
2009 219,699,094 5,750,000 240,000 225.689.004 213% 2,751 8,786,426 3,459,000
2010 238,880,650 5,250,000 . 144,130,650 2.52% 2,955 6,394,321 3,266,000
2011 212,210,442 4,750,000 - 226,960,442 2.34% 2.683 4,549,616 3,073,000
2012 321,703,039 4,250,000 - 125,953,039 J.44% 3804 4,390,193 2,880,000
2013 363,220.117 - - 363,220,117 3.38% 4,201 5,388,859 2,687.000

Business-Type Aciivities (1)
Senior: Presentation only Total Percentage of

Fiscal Capital Revenue Subordinate; Notes Primary Personal Per

Year** Leases Bonds GO Bonds (5) Payalble Government Income (4) Coplta (4}
2004 - 54,672,539 - 3,334,000 214,845,355 9.67% 2975
2005 - 53,827,788 - - 222078117 9.24% 2,926
2006 - 67,023,043 - - 241,553.869 9.10% 3084
2007 - 106,290,829 - o 331,693,910 11.59% 4,169
2008 145,323,116 - - 378,908,360 12.55% 4,672
2009 - 188,938,920 - - 426,873,440 13.98% 5,203
2010 - 185,823.411 27,000,000 - 439,614,382 14.06%: 5321
2011 - 179,922,539 27,000,000 414,505,597 12.43% 4,500
2012 2,718,563 161,624,546 27,000,000 497,566,342 14.92% 5,806
03 2,337,275 151,375,536 26,395,000 525,008,787 15.74% 6,072

W) peuils garding the City's Jing debi can be found in the notes 1o the financial siatements. Business-Lype activilies

included some Golf Course aotes payable in 202 - 2004,

(2) GO Bonds inchude Unility GO Bonds (wilh or without an addiional revenue pledged. They exclude the unamontized
preminms and defermed for advance refunding. This change requincd reslating previous years' balances,

{3} See Table 6 for estimated actual taxable value of propesty data

T4) See Tahle 16 for personal income and population data. The most recent personal incame data available from the Bureay
of Economic Analysis is 2011 and is used 10 analyze years 2001 through 2013,

{5} The subopdinate GO bonds ane “double-harmeled”, they have a revedtie pledge but are backed hy the Cily's general
obligation. They are presented under Business-Lype activities bul are actually included in the General Bonded Dbt waal.

*Previous years restated 1 include Wility GO bond debt in General honded debi.
** Previous years restated to include the relaled premiums. discounts and adjusiments,
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA Tahle 15
PLEDGE-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Net Revenue
Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating Far Debt Debi Service Requirements (3)
Year Revenues (3) Expenses (2) Service Principal Interest Total Coverage (4)
UTILITY REVENUE BONDS (WATER AND SEWER)
2004 s 19,338,363 s 10,439,332 S 8,899,031 S B40,000 $ 2,687,839 $ 3527839 252
2005 23,096,899 12,583,141 10,513,758 1,060,000 2,782,571 3,842,571 274
2006 21,275,903 13,840,075 7,435,828 1,240,000 3,045,619 4,285,619 1.74
2007 29.991,524 14,859,732 15,131,792 1,810,000 3,123,149 4,933,149 307
2008 28,893,476 14,820,616 14,072,860 1,610,000 4,026,864 5,636,864 2,50
2009 29,758,790 16,601,440 13,157,350 2,290,000 4,258,888 6,548,888 2.01
2010 29,579,413 15,710,773 13,868,640 3,155,000 6,441,335 9,596,135 1.45
2011 30,342,116 15,009,702 15,332,414 4,040,000 8,929,768 12,969,768 1.18
2012 34,213,151 16,600,935 17,612,216 2,640,000 9,316,190 11,956,190 1.47
2013 38,796,061 8,491,436 20,304,625 2,010,000 8.814,174 10,824,174 1.88

() Gross revenues include operating revenues, miscellaneous revenues, ttansfers in, inlerest income and BAB interest subsidy

(2)  Operating expenses are exclusive of depreciation, amontization, interest expense, debt issuance ¢osts and loss on disposal of capital assets.

(3 Includes principal and interest of revenue debt that falls under the debt covenant requirements of the master indenture and other agreements.
(Capitalized interest paid by bond proceeds is excluded from the Interest)
There were significam changes in debt service requirements from previous years because they now exclude GO-bonded debi.

() The debt service coverage ratio is calcutated as Net Revenue Available for Debt Service divided by Total Debi Service Requirements

(For the Lhility fund the coverage must be over 1.15: since 2009, Suffolk’s financial policy has recommended a target of 1.30,
including all non-parity debt which has not been included in this analysis)



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

Table 16

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Personal Schools: Unemployment Rate
Fiscal Income (2) Per Capita Average Daily City of State of United
Year Population (1) In Thousands Income (2)* Membership (3) Suffolk Virginia States
2004 72,213 S 2,222,284 3 29,338 12,966 4.1% 17% 5.5%
2005 75,909 2,403,540 30,845 13,297 19% 1.5% 5.1%
2006 78,323 2,654,590 33,119 13,452 15% 10% 1.6%
007 79.567 2,861,021 35,255 13,490 3% 11% 4.6%
2008 B1,103 3.018,158 36,618 13,513 4.1% 4.0% 5.8%
2009 82,039 3,053,030 36,494 13,568 1.0% 6.9% 9.3%
2010 82,616 3,125,659 36,828 13,801 7.8% 1.1% 9.6%
201 84,585 3,335,932 39,279 13,863 1.3% 6.4% B.9%
20012 85.692 not available not available 13,734 6.8% 5.9% 8.1%
2013 86,461 not available not available 13,851 6.5% 5.8% 1%
Sonrces:
(1) Weldon Cooper Cenmter for Public Service
(2) Bureau of Economic Analysis based on calendar year
(3) City of Sulfolk Public Schools based on March 3151 collection data for State of Virgima
(4) Virginia Employment Commission - Area Unemployment S <, based on calendar year, 2013 rate as of July 2013
Comparative Unemployment Rates
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

Table 17

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
2013
Percentage
of Total City
Employer Type of Business Employees Employment
J-7 Joint Staff DoD Training and Simulation £,300 4.87%
Sentara Obici Hospital Medical 1,200 4.50%
CVN Distribution Distribution Warchouse 1,000 3.75%
Wal-Mart Stores Retail 900 337%
Sysco Food Services of Hampton Roads Food Service Distribution 500 1.87%
Planters/Kraft Foods Food Processing 340 1.27%
Unilever/Lipton Inc. Beverage Company 300 1.12%
Lakeview Medical Center Medical 270 1.0O1%
Bon Secours Health System Medical 270 1.01%
Towne Bank Banking 230 0.86%
6,310 23.65%
Total Employment by Industry in City of Suffolk for fiscal year 26,681
2004
Percentage
of Total City
Employer Type of Business Employees Employment
U.S. Joint Forces Command DoD Modeling and Simulation 1,200 5.53%
CVN Distribution Distribution Warehouse 750 3.45%
Wal-Mart Stores Retail 500 2.30%
Tidewater Community College Education 350 1.61%
CIBA Specialty Chemicals Chemical Manufacturer 280 1.29%
Planters/Kraft Foods Food Processing 280 1.29%
Unilever/Lipton Inc. Beverage Company 255 1.17%
Food Lion Grocery Store 250 1.15%
Lakeview Medical Center Medical 240 1L.11%
IM Smucker Company Beverage Company 225 1.04%
4,330 19.94%
Totat Employment by Industry in City of Suffolk for fiscal year 2L715

The Suffolk Public Schools (1,780 employces) and the City of Suffolk (1,307 FTE employees) have not been included to give

a clearer reflection of community activity.

Seurce: Economic Development Department and Virginia Emplayment Commission
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

TABLE 18

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Frogram 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
General Fund:
General Government:
City Council S 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 10 10
City Manager 2 2 2 5 5 6 6 6 6 7
Asst City Manager Operations 2 2 2 | - - - - - -
Asst City Manager Development 4 4 4 4 2 - - - - -
Management Services 9 7 7 6 6 - - - - -
Budget and Strategic Planning - - - - - 4 4 4 4 3
City Attorney 7 7 7 9 9 9 8 8 9 9
Human Resources 6 7 7 [ 8 8 8 9 13 10
Commissioner of Revenue 10 10 11 12 2 12 11 12 12 12
City Assessor 13 13 13 13 13 14 15 13 14 15
Treasurer 13 13 13 i6 16 15 15 15 15 15
Finance - Administration and Accounting 9 11 12 11 11 10 12 1] 14 12
Finance - Purchasing 3 4 4 5 5 4 4 3 3 3
Registrar 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Total 88 L] 93 101 98 o4 95 93 102 98
Judicial:
Circuit Count 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Circuit Court - Clerk's Office 13 13 13 14 14 13 4 14 14 14
Sherifl 21 21 22 25 25 25 24 2 24 24
Commonwealth Atiomey 17 17 18 22 29 29 28 23 23 24
Total 53 53 55 63 70 69 68 61 63 64
Public Safety:
Police
Administratien and Officers 175 186 196 206 206 194 204 205 208 196
Emergency Communications 2 2B 22 26 26 26 2 25 26 24
Animal Shelier and Management 9 9 9 9 9 3 8 9 8
Fire
Fire and Rescue 183 187 190 197 197 216 213 220 40 238
Fire Prevention k] 3 3 3 3 5 - - - -
Community Development 24 27 27 27 27 26 4 26 27 26
Total 419 434 447 468 468 475 470 484 510 492
Public Works:
Public Works
Adminisiration 7 7 7 7 6 5 3 3 24 2
Traffic Engincering and Maintenance (1) 27 30 34 - B - 3 E
Engineering (2) 9 " 12 - - - - - -
Refuse Collection (3) 12 12 14 46 46 40 41 40 - -
Maintenance Building and Grounds 22 25 25 27 27 15 4 4 4 4
Mosquito Control 2 2] 24 2] - - - - -
Capital Programs and Facilitics k] 3 3 3 3 6 20 2 24 23
Aviation Facilities 3 k] 3 3 3 3 3 - -
Total 85 93 100 88 a5 69 71 72 30 29
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM Table 18 (continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 204 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 200 2011 2012 2013

General Fund:
Health and Welfare:

Social Services 101 102 101 102 102 101 100 101 98 100

Comprehensive Services Act 1 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 1 2

Total 102 103 102 103 103 102 101 102 99 102

Parks, Recreation and Cultural:
Parks and Recreation

Administration 8 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 5
Support Services - 5 5 4 4 4 4 5 5 6
Parks, Gateway and Facility Maintenance 17 18 20 22 2 0 19 18 18 19
Recreation 11 9 9 12 12 14 16 15 16 6
Library 17 17 23 35 34 31 31 30 3l 28
Tolal 53 54 62 77 76 7 ¥ 72 75 Ea

Community Development:

Planning 15 16 16 18 16 14 12 14 12 13
Geographic Information Systems - - - 3 5 5 - - -
Econromic Development 7 7 7 B 5 4 5 5 5
Tourism 2 3 k] 3 3 3 3 k] 2 3
Media and Community Relations - 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6
Total e 30 k]| 33 35 32 9 28 25 27
Towal General Fund 824 858 890 913 935 914 908 912 oM 886
Specinl Revenue Fund:
Transit 5 5 5 5 5 - -
Road Matnenance (1}
Road Maintenance - . - 93 94 86 91 a8 90 2}
Traific Engineering - - - 20 23 2 23 22 23 2
Avintion Facilities (6) - - - - - - . - 3 3
Total Special Revenue Fund 5 5 5 L8 122 108 14 110 16 108
Enterprise Fund:
Public Utilities
Administration 4 6 6 6 B 6 9 8 9 7
Customer Service 7 17 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Line Mainienance 29 26 26 26 26 24 27 26 M 25
Maintenance 17 17 20 20 20 19 20 20 22 A
Water Production 23 24 28 28 19 28 29 27 28 0
Engincering 11 1] 12 16 18 15 17 14 15 15
Stormwater Utility
Stormwater Utility (2) - - - 28 28 26 27 25 28 27
Mosquito Cemrol (2) - - - - 7 6 7 5 1 6
Refuse (5} - - - - - - - - 39 36
Total Enterprise Fund 9] 101 109 142 154 142 154 143 190 188
Internal Service Funds:
Fleet Management 18 19 i9 25 26 23 21 23 18 20
Information Technology 10 11 12 12 13 13 12 20 21 22
Risk Management - 2 2 2 2 2 | 3 5 4
Total Risk Management 28 32 33 39 41 38 3 46 44 46
Total o948 996 1,037 1,232 1,252 1,202 1.210 1,211 1,254 1,228
[C)] 4 )] 4 )

1. Road maintenance fund was increased in 2007 due to VA Dept. of Transpanation turning over the highway
system within the Cily to Suffolk.
. New program adopted by City Council in 2007 and staffing realignment,
. Change in methodology of calculating full time employees in this department.
. 2009 - 2013 actual data furnished by Human Resources. 2003-2008 provided by Budget Office.
5. The City established a Refuse Fund in FY 2011-2012. The employees for this Fund were wransferved from the General Fund.
6. The City established an Aviation Facilitics Special Revenue Fund in FY 20( [-2012, The employees for this Fund were transferred from the General Fund,

4 L 1
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

Table 20

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Public Safety:
Police Stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5
Fire Stations 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9
Public Works: (1)
State maintained road miles 1,308 1,308 1,308 17 18 13 18 18 18 18
City maintained road miles 76 76 76 1,420 1,500 1,531 1,581 1,581 1,600 1,600
Streetlights 6,467 6,710 6,940 6,980 7,000 7,139 7,648 7917 7,996 8113
Bridges 3 3 k] 144 144 147 147 147 147 155
Traffic Signals 23 23 23 86 89 91 91 93 9 923
Education:
Elementary Schools 12 12 12 13 13 14 14 14 12 12
Middle Schools 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
High Schools 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Alternative Schoels 1 1 1 I | 1 1 1 1 |
Number of Teachers, Principals,
and Assistants 1,295 1,347 1,380 1,193 1,405 1,448 1,425 1,419 1,420 1,402
Average Daily Membership 12,966 13,297 13,452 13490 13,512 13,568 13,801 13,863 13,734 13,851
Capacity of Schools 11,450 13,250 13,250 14,050 14,050 14,632 14,577 14,577 14,192 14,352
Enterprise Fund:
Public Utilities
Miles of Water Main 261 271 400 415 420 420 422 436 453 454
Miles of Sanitary Sewers 188 198 293 308 309 313 315 34 316 330
Miles of Storm Sewers 6 6 6 142 236 236 236 236 236 266
Pump Stations 104 112 113 125 129 131 134 136 140 140
Storage Tanks 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 8 9 9
Parks, Recreation and Culiural;
Parks and Recreation .
Number of major parks and
recreation faciltics (2) 41 41 41 41 41 40 40 42 42 43
Acreage of major parks and
recreation facilties 1,825 1,825 1,825 1,825 1,827 1,827 1,827 1,921 1,921 1,928
Library
Number of libraries 1 i 1 1 | 1 1 1 | 1
Number of branch libraries 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2
Number of bookmobiles 1 | 1 I 1 I 1 1 1 1

Sources: Various City Departments

1. July 1, 2006: Virginia Department of Transportation wrned over the highway system within the City to the City of Suffolk, except
for Interstate [-664 and Route 164

2. In 2009 the American Legion Building was sold and in 2011, the East Suffolk Recreation Center and the first segment of the
Suffolk Seaboard Coastline Trail were added. The former Roberison Elementary School was added in 2013 and is being renovated
into the Whaleyville Community Center.
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: Cherry Bekaert”

CPAs & Advisors

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns,
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Suffolk, Virginia (City) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2013. That report
recognizes that the City implemented one new accounting standard effective July 1, 2012,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effecliveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and five instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under the Specifications for
Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, which are reported in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 2013-1 through 2013-5.
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City of Suffolk, Virginia’s Response to Findings

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
December 17, 2013.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

%6&[“7 P

Richmond, Virginia
December 17, 2013

117



:: Cherry Bekaert”

CPAs & Advisors

Independent Auditor’'s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

To the City Council
City of Suffolk, Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Suffolk, Virginia's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City
of Suffolk, Virginia's (City) major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. City of Suffolk, Virginia's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Cily of Suffolk, Virginia's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemnments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit
to oblain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Suffolk, Virginia's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Suffolk, Virginia's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Suffolk, Virginia, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Suffolk, Virginia, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. in planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered City of Suffolk, Virginia's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effecliveness of City of
Suffolk, Virginia's internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in intermal conltrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be malerial weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%5M «h

Richmond, Virginia
December 17, 2013
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, YIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ending June 30, 2013

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Catalog Federal Depariment
Grantor/Grant Prog Number Expenditures Tolols
1L.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Comunonwealth of Virginia.
Departiment of Agriculture and Departmen! of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 1,149,586
Food Distribution 10.555 291,923
National Schoel Lunch Program 10.555 2,837.028
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 102,262
Depanment of Social Services
State Administrative Matching Granis for Food Stamp Progeam 10 56§ 1,304,301
Depaniment of Education
Fresh Fruit and Vegelable Program 10 582 47,552
Toual U.S. Department of Agriculture 5,732,652
11,5, Depariment of Defente
Direct Progrm:
JROTC Instruction 12.000 170,446
Community Economic Adjustment Assistance for a Military Installation 12.607 257,805
Tola) 1.8, Deparment of Defense 428,251
LS. Depariment of Housing nnd §/rban Developmen
Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Granis 14.218 405,07
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14239 139,950
Economic Development Iniliative-The Great Dismal Swamp ol
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:
Community Development Block Grants-Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228 189,153
Total U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Development 746,093
ts i 5
Direct Program:
Bullet Proof Vests Partnership Program 16,607 13,514
Passed Through Department of Critinal Justice Services
Crime Viciim Assistance 16.575 191,696
Violence Against Women Formula Grams 16.588 T1.871
State Criminal Akien Assisiance Program 16.606 5.084
Edward Byrne Memorial Jusiice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 68,624
ARRA Edward Byme M ial Competitive Grant Progr 16.808 53,066
Total U.5. Department of Justice 409,815
LS. Department of Tronsportation
Direct Program:
Airpont [mpwovement Program 20.106 748,772
Highway Safety Gramt 20.601 18,220
Elighway Planning and Construction Cluster
Pass-through Virginta Departmen! of Transportation
Highwoy Planning and Construction 20 205 585,362

Total U.S, Depantmeat of Traasportation

1,352,354



LS. riment of £.11
Direct Program:
Impact Aid

Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia
Adult Education - Basic Grants to Stales
Career and Technical-Basic Grants to Siates
Title II-A
ARRA Education Jobs Fund

Tiile 1, Pant A Cluster
Title | Gramts to Local Educational Agencies

Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
Special Education - Granls to States
Special Educaiion - Preschool Granis

Schoo! Improvement Grants Cluster
School Improvement Grants

Total U.5, Department of Education

LS. Depariment of Health ond Human Services
Direct Payments:
Medical Assistance Program

Passed Through Commonwealih of Virginia:
Promoling Safe and Stable Families
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Reflugee & Entrant Assistance
ILP Education & Trining
Child Welfare Services
Foster Care - Title IV-E
Adoption Assistance
Social Service Block Grant
Foster Care Independent Living
Chillren's Health Insurance Program
Medical Assistance Program

CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care Mandatory & Matching Funds for Child Care Dev Fund

Total U.S. Department of Health and Hunwn Services

1L.S. Social Security Administration
Passed Through Commonwealth of Virginia:

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Total U.S. Socia) Security Adminisiration
LS, riment of Homeland Security
Passed Through Department of Crimina) Justice;
ARRA Pont Security Grant Pregram
Passed Through Depariment of Emergency Services:
VDEM HRUASI Program Grant
VDEM Regional Communication Flan
State Homelarud Security Program
Total U.5. Depariment of Homeland Security

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1. Basis of Accounling:
This schedule was prepared on the modified accrual basis.
Note 2. Nonmeonelary Assistance

B4.041

84.002
84048
84.367
84410

BA.0ID

84.027
84.173

84.377

93.778

93.556
93.558
93.566
93,599
91645
93.658
93.659
93.667
93.674
93.767
93.778

93.575
93.596

96.568

97.056

97.008
97.055
97.073

462,566

14,700
213,690
662,827

67428

2949433

4,117,572
57,830

178,970

239006

40,954
1,023,060
4,769
4,130
4,442
458,861
205177
645218
12,113
32571
715916

(1,224}
140,178

66,043

866,767

1,858,652
144,651
1,750

Nonmwneiary Assistance is reporied in the Schedule of Federal Awards a1 the fair market balue of the food commodities.

At June 30, 2013, the School Board had USDA food commeditics 1otaling $253,485 in inventory.

8725016

3.585.261

66.043

2.871.859

23917, M5



CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2013

A.  Summary of Auditor’s Results
1. The type of report issued on the basic financial statements: Unmodified opinion

2. Significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed by the audit of the financial statements: None
reported

3. Material weaknesses in internal control disclosed by the audit of financial statements: No
4. Noncompliance, which is material to the financial statements: No

5. Significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs: None reported

6. Material weaknesses in internal control over major programs: No

7. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified opinion

8. Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133;
None

9. The programs tested as major programs were:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.553/10.555-CL Child Nutrition Cluster

14.218-CL CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
84.010-CL Title 1

93.658 Foster Care

93.659 Adoption Assistance

93.667 Social Services Block Grant

97.008 Urban Area Security Initiative

97.056 Port Security

10. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $717,520
11. City of Suffolk qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: No

B.  Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards:

None reported.

C. Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards:

None reported.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2013

Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Compliance with Commonwealth of Virginin Laws,
Regulations, Contracts, and Grants

2013-1 Property Taxes
Criteria:

The Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns (Specifications), issued by the Auditor of
Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia requires local auditors to test to ensure that assessment
records agree to the locality’s general ledger.

Condition:

During our testing related to property taxes, we noted that the receivable balance per the City’s Land Book
was different than the general ledger by $112,273.

Cause:
The internal control processes were not operating effectively to ensure the agreement of both balances.

Effect:

Inconsistencies between the Land Book and the general ledger could cause inaccurate financial reporting.
Recommendation:

We recommend that the Land Book and general ledger be reconciled quarterly to ensure their agreement.
Management Response:

The Treasurer’s Office has added procedures to their workplan to reconcile the land book and general
ledger to ensure their agreement.

2013-2 Conflicts of Interest

Criteria:

As described in Section 2.2-3115 of the Code of Virginia, local officials must file an annual disclosure
form, disclosing personal financial interests that may cause conflicts.

Condition:
One official did not complete the annual disclosure timely.
Cause:

Unknown.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2013

Effect:

Non-compliance may result in action by the Commonwealth.
Recommendation;

Elected officials should complete all disclosure forms timely.

Management Response:

The City Clerk’s Office contact all elected officials prior to the submission deadline for the disclosure
statements.

2013-3  Social Services Continuity Plan
Criteria;

Per the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, each locality should have a documented
Business Continuity Plan, as described on the Virginia Department of Emergency Management's website

at http://www.vaemergency.gov/em-community/plans/coop/local-gov.

Condition:

The City’s Business Continuity Plan did not address loss of services due to a reduced workforce.
Cause:

Unknown

Effect:

Non-compliance may result in action by the Commonwealth.

Recommendation:

The City should update its Business Continuity Plan to include policies and procedures related to loss of
services due to a reduced workforce.

Management Response;

The City will update its Business Continuity Plan to include policies and procedures related to loss of
services due to a reduced workforce.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2013

2013-4  Sheriff’s Office

Criteria:

In accordance with the Virginia Sheriffs Accounting Manual, fee related funds should be remitted to the
Treasurer in a timely manner.

Condition:

Per the Commonwealth of Virginia’s Auditor of Public Accounts report dated November 7, 2013 detailing

their review of collections and remittances, fee reports and related checks for September 2012 and
February 2013 were not remitted by the Sheriff’s office to the Treasurer until September 2013.

Cause:

Unknown

Effect:

Non-compliance may result in action by the Commonwealth.

Recommendation;

The Sheriff should emphasize policies and procedures to ensure late submissions do not reoccur.

Management Response:
The Sheriff’s Office will comply with the recommendation.
2013-5 School Board’s Grant Fund

Criteria:

In accordance with the Specifications, auditors are required to compare adjusted appropriations and
expenditures in each fund and major category and determine whether disbursements were made in excess
of appropriations.

Condition:

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Grants Fund expended $963,160 of funds that were available
to the School Board under the federal grants but which were in excess of appropriation.

Cause:

Available carryover funds from the prior fiscal year were not appropriated for fiscal year 2013.
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CITY OF SUFFOLK, VIRGINIA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year ended June 30, 2013

Effect:
The School Board is not in compliance with requirements of the Commonwealth.
Recommendation:

The School Board should ensure that fiscal controls are in place and monitored to prevent exceeding
appropriated funds and to request additional appropriations, if necessary.

Management Response:

The estimated carry forward balances for the various grants were inadvertently left out of the figures in the
budget process. The new general ledger system implemented in October 2012 changed the process for
budgeting and management did not discover the overage until the yearend review. Management has
implemented a changed budget process that will ensure that the budget appropriation is correct and
accounts for all expected carry forward budgets. Staff has been trained in the new process and understands
how to process budget correctly.

Resolution of Prior Year Findings:
12-01 — City, School and EDA Adjustment - Finding not repeated

12-02 - Disclosure Statements — Finding repeated as 2013-2
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